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Letters to Shareholders
Dear Rangsutra community, 

Last year, despite Covid related uncertainties and challenges that we all faced, along with  rising prices of goods and commodities, 
rangSutra stayed resilient. Our philosophy of looking at the glass half full, meant a positive mindset, being prepared, engaging in 
creative, constructive work and always seeking alternatives and opportunities.

Financial Health: On the whole, given the difficult trading and operating environment and the impact of Covid on many businesses in FY 
21-22  the increase in revenue and continued profitability shows how robust our business is, even in the most difficult of environments. 
As things return to somewhat normal we look forward to seeing even stronger financial performance.

Work and incomes come home: We are happy that around 40% of rangSutra’s income from sales went directly to artisan owned and 
artisan managed groups, creating a direct positive impact in the lives over 2100 artisans and their families. 

Our teams hard work in the previous year ensured that we had sufficient orders in hand, ensuring work for most of our artisans in the 
mature clusters in Rajasthan– Bikaner Barmer and Uttar Pradesh - Mirzapur and Gyanpur. Artisans in our new clusters, Noorbagh  (J&K)
and Hardoi (UP) also secured orders and work. 

Our growing partnership with IKEA and their generous support to build capacity and capabilities, along with regular large orders, has 
ensured that all our handloom weavers had regular work throughout the year. It also facilitated the inclusion of many women in these 
villages who were taught simple hand embroidery and tasseling. Our partner weaver’s organizations stepped up to increase their 
capacities, innovating and developing improved handlooms locally in Lunkaransar. 

Orders and support from Fabindia ensured that our artisans who practice beautiful hand embroidery in Rajasthan and Noorbagh, 
Srinagar got regular work. Their support made it possible for extra weft weavers to upgrade their looms, install solar panels at their 
units, and hone their skills, thus ensuring that this intricate traditional skill is not lost in the future. 

Our small and resilient retail business, has put in a lot of effort in streamlining production processes, managing inventory, creating new 
designs, and using our ERP software to go seamlessly online. Our retail and online presence has ensured visibility for rangSutra and 
has been instrumental in generating more interest in our company, from customers, buyers, investors, artisan groups and educational 
institutions. 

We made extra effort in securing orders from new buyers, notably Jaypore, and this translated into 3 orders last year. We are confident 
that these new partnerships will grow steadily in the coming years

Operational challenges: With the fear of Covid looming large we devised flexible ways of working at our centres. Keeping safety in 
mind, we moved to a hybrid model, where some artisans worked from home, while others came to centres, sometimes in batches. 
Lockdowns early in the year, meant slow movement of goods and raw materials and this adversely affected order execution and timely 
completion. Some orders have spilled over into the next year.

Creating safe, comfortable solar powered centres for our teams and artisans. Investment in solar panels, partly funded by IKEA, at 
our hubs and villages centres in Rajasthan and Uttar Pradesh ensure that our teams and artisans stay cool in summer and have enough 
light during cloudy winter and rainy days. We ensured that our teams and artisans had access to health insurance keeping the uncertain 
health situation in mind. Our centres in Barmer and Bikaner increased stitching capacity and also expanded our outreach to include 
many more women artisans who quickly learned hand embroidery and tassel making, thereby ensuring work for them last year. The 
Gyanpur Centre made special efforts in rainwater harvesting, in water to ensure regular availability of water for growing plants and 
trees in the centre. Barmer started 3 new village centres in the Mahabar area and made special efforts to put in solar panels in 6 centres 
this past year. 

New Clusters

21-22 was a very intensive year for Bandipora cluster. Skill assessment and upgradation of all 300 artisans were conducted, as was 
product development with 20 master artisans. Additionally, market research, colour and trends workshops were held to give artisans 
an exposure to the export market.  Two craft manager trainings and one Producer Collective Management workshop were held. 
Bandipora Weavers Producer Company Limited was registered in the month of June, and bank account registration completed.

Noorbagh, Srinagar matured into a full fledged cluster, with completion of all the cluster development activities and registration of the 
Noorari producer company. The team and artisans worked hard to develop new samples, secure orders and execute them on time, thus 
ensuring decent incomes for the 100 plus artisans and recognition for the cluster. Securing a proper space to work from and working 
capital  remained a challenge.

Rajasar, Bikaner The Cluster was started with the help of Center for Pastoralism (CFP). The main in 2021 was experimenting with the 
indigenous Chokhla Wool to arrive at market friendly product options. We experimented with handwoven fabric, trained artisans in 
natural dyeing  and introduced Bharat merino as a blend to make the wool feel softer. Along with our experiments, the cluster also 
became the part of the Desi Oon network, which enables knowledge sharing with other organizations working with indigenous wool 
and aims at creating an ecosystem for Desi Oon. This partnership enriched our journey, and our efforts at looking at sustainable local 
raw material for our products.
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The Rakua cluster in Ramgarh, Jharkhand, is in a nascent stage, begun in partnership with TRI (Transforming Rural India). The goal is 
to set up a bamboo cluster, by organizing artisans, creating new products for the contemporary market, and intervening to strengthen 
the supply chain where required. 

Trainings: are very important at rangSutra. We take care to ensure that our teams, including our artisans are given knowledge, 
information, and the opportunity to practice their work so that they can improve each year. More than 100 artisan training sessions 
were conducted, and more than 60 employee training sessions on a wide range of topics :- 

• Skill up gradation and  product development in all our crafts.

• Managing and governing  a  producer collective

• Production, quality control and inventory management training, with a focus on record keeping.

• Trainings on ERP – Next software

• Training on Covid guidelines and precautionary measures to be taken by all

• Training on compliance guidelines to equip our teams with best knowledge and tools.

• To ensure that a safe and conducive work environment, regular training sessions on policy against sexual harassment and against 
discrimination of all kinds, were organized. 

• Our sessions with IKEA teams helped us in fine tuning our theory of change – focusing on the empowerment of women – both 
economic and social, and building a resilient business. 

• Organizational values – our partner Women on Wings held workshops, helping us to identify and re -define the core values that 
guide us in our work– respect, inclusion, entrepreneurship and thought leadership.

Demat accounts: A recently passed law mandates that all shares of public limited companies must be dematerialized. Opening a 
demat account is a tedious process and a lot of effort has gone into making this happen across all our centres where we have artisan 
shareholders. Well done team! 

Digital Transformation is another area where the team has been working hard, ensuring timely record keeping, in order to be able 
to get an accurate The retail business led the way and is fully online on ERP Next, b2b businesses began this process in January, and 
Finance teams are also on board. 

Environmental Footprint: We try to use cotton from sustainable sources, in our products, and take care to ensure that the dyeing units 
where our yarn is dyed treats its effluence. As most of our work is handmade, very few machines which require electricity are used. 
But we still have much to do in this area.

A special thanks to our funding partners -  EXIM Bank and YSBF (Yunus Social Business Fund) for continuing to fund our growth through 
working capital.

Thank you all for being an important part of our journey, and our growth story. Together we have demonstrated that it is possible to 
run an ethical, inclusive, creative, social enterprise that is financially sound, engenders social transformation and takes care not to 
harm the planet.

Sincerely,

Sumita Ghose

Managing Director 
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शेयरधारको ंके लिए पत्र 
प्रिय रंगसूत्र समुदाय,

प्िछले साल, कोप्िड से संबंधित अप्िश्चितताओ ंऔर चुिौप्तयो ंके साथ-साथ माल और िस्ओु ंकी बढ़ती कीमतो ंके बािजूद, रंगसूत्र दृढ़ रहा। हमारी प्िचारिारा- अिंकार ककतिा भी 
गहरा हो, एक दीिक की रोशिी से खत्म हो जाता ह,ै का अथ्थ है सकारात्मक मािधसकता रखिा, इचु्क होिा, रचिात्मक काययों में संलग्न होिा, काम में व्ािहाररकता और हमेशा प्िकल्प 
और अिसरो ंकी तलाश में रहिा।

वित्तीय स्ास्थ्य: कुल ममलाकर, ककिि व्ािाररक और िररचालि िातािरण को मदे्िज़र रखत ेहुए और प्ित्त िर्थ 21-22 में कई व्िसायो ंिर कोप्िड का रिभाि देखकर, आय 
(आमदिी) में िमृधि और प्िरंतर लाभरिदता दशा्थती ह ैकक सबसे ककिि िातािरण के बािजदू हमारा व्िसाय ककतिा मजबतू ह।ै जैसे चीजें कुछ हद तक सामान्य हो जाती हैं,  हम और 
भी मजबतू प्ित्तीय रिदश्थि देखिे की उम्ीद करत ेहैं।

काम और आय घर आते हैं: हमें खुशी ह ैकक रंगसूत्र की प्बक्ी की आय का लगभग 40% सीि ेकारीगरो ंके स्ाममत्व िाले और कारीगर रिबंधित समूहो ंके िास गया, तथा 2100 से 
अधिक कारीगरो ंऔर उिके िररिारो ंके जीिि में एक रित्यक्ष सकारात्मक रिभाि लाया।

प्िछले िर्थ में हमारी टीमो ंकी कडी मेहित िे सुप्िश्चित ककया कक हमारे िास राजस्ाि-बीकािेर बाडमेर और उत्तर रिदेश-ममजा्थिुर और ज्ाििुर में िररिक्व समूहो ंमें हमारे अधिकाशं 
कारीगरो ंके ललए काम सुप्िश्चित करिे के ललए िया्थप्त ऑड्थर हैं। हमारे िए समूहो,ं िूरबाग (जम्-ूकश्ीर) और हरदोई (यिूी) के कारीगरो ंिे भी ऑड्थर और काम हाधसल ककया।

IKEA के साथ हमारी बढ़ती साझदेारी और क्षमता प्िमा्थण के ललए उिका उदार समथ्थि और क्षमताओ,ं और अििे प्ियममत बडे ऑड्थरो ंके साथ, यह सुप्िश्चित ककया ह ैकक हमारे सभी 
हथकरघा बिुकरो ंके िास साल भर प्ियममत काम रह।े इससे गािँो ंके कई मकहलाओ ंको इिमें शाममल करिे की सुप्ििा भी रिाप्त हुई ह।ै उिको सािारण हाथ की कढ़ाई और फूने् 
लगािा धसखाया जाता था। हमारे साथी बिुकर संगििो ंिे अििी क्षमता बढ़ािे, ििाचार करिे और लुिकरणसर में स्ािीय रूि से हथकरघा के बहेतर प्िकास करिे के ललए कदम 
बढ़ाया।

फैबइंकडया के ऑड्थरो ंऔर समथ्थि िे सुप्िश्चित ककया कक हमारे राजस्ाि और िूरबाग, श्ीिगर के संुदर हस्- कढ़ाई करिे िाले कारीगरो ंको प्ियममत रूि से काम ममला। उिके इस 
समथ्थि से अप्तररक्त बिुकरो ंके ललए अििे करघो ंको अिग्ेड करिा, अििी इकाइयो ंमें सोलर िैिल स्ाप्ित करिा और िररणामस्रूि, अििे कौशल में लगातार प्िखार लािा संभि 
हुआ। इस रिकार, यह सुप्िश्चित होता हैं कक यह िारंिररक कौशल भप्िष्य में कही ंलुप्त ि हो जाए।

हमारे छोटे और दृढ़ खुदरा व्ािार िे उत्ादि- रिकक्याओ ंको सुव्िस्स्त करिे का, इन्ेंटी् के रिबंिि का, िए कडज़ाइि बिाि ेऔर प्िबा्थि रूि से ऑिलाइि जािे के ललए हमारे ईआरिी 
सॉफ़टिेयर के उियोग करिा का बहुत रियत्न ककया ह।ै हमारी खुदरा और ऑिलाइि उिस्स्प्त िे रंगसूत्र के ललए दृश्यता सुप्िश्चित की ह ैऔर हमारी कंििी के रिप्त ग्ाहको,ं खरीददारो,ं 
प्ििेशक, कारीगर समूहो ंऔर शैक्षणणक संस्ािो ंके बीच में अधिक रुचच िैदा करिे में महत्विूण्थ भूममका प्िभाई ह।ै

हमिे िए खरीदारो ंसे ऑड्थर हाधसल करिे के ललए अप्तररक्त रियास ककए, प्िशेर रूि से जयिोर के, और यह प्िछले साल 3 ऑड्थरो ंमें अिुिाकदत हुआ। हमें प्िश्ास ह ैकक ये िई साल-
झदेाररया ंआिे िाले िरयों में लगातार बढ़ेंगी।

संचािन संबंधती चुनौवतया:ँ कोप्िड के बडे िैमािे िर होिे के डर से हमारे कें दो ंिर काम करिे के ललए हमिे लचीले तरीके तयैार ककए। सुरक्षा को ध्ाि में रखत ेहुए, हमिे एक हाइब्रिड 
मॉडल का प्िकल्प चुिा, जहा ंकुछ कारीगर घर से काम करत ेथ,े जबकक अन्य समूहो ंमें कें द िर आत ेथ।े साल की शुरुआत में लॉकडाउि का मतलब था िस्ओु ंऔर कच्े माल की 
िीमी आिाजाही और इसका ऑड्थर प्िष्ादि और समयबधि िूण्थता िर रिप्तकूल रिभाि िडा। कारणिश, कुछ ऑड्थर अगले िर्थ में खत्म ककए जाएंगे।

हमारती टतीमो ंऔर कारतीगरो ंके लिए सुरक्षित, आरामदायक सौर ऊराजा संचालित कें द्र बनाना : सौर िैिलो ंमें  प्ििेश, जो आणंशक रूि से IKEA द्ारा प्ित्तीय सहयोग ह,ै हमारे राजस्ाि 
और उत्तर रिदेश के ग्ामीण-कें दो ंिर हमारी टीमें और कारीगर को गममी में शीतलता तथा बादल सर्दयो ंऔर बरसात के कदिो ंमें िया्थप्त रिकाश सुप्िश्चित करता ह।ै अप्िश्चित स्ास्थ्य 
स्स्प्त को ध्ाि में रखते हुए हमिे हमारी टीमो ंऔर कारीगरो ंके ललए स्ास्थ्य बीमा भी सुप्िश्चित ककया। हमारे बाडमेर और बीकािेर कें दो ंमें धसलाई क्षमता में िमृधि हुई, और कई और 
मकहला कारीगरो को शाममल करिे के हमारे िहंुच का भी प्िस्ार ककया, श्जनोिंे हाथ की कढ़ाई और फंूदे बिािा जल्ी सीख ललया। श्जससे प्िछले साल उिके ललए काम सुप्िश्चित ककया 
जा सके। ज्ाििुर कें द िे िरा्थ जल संचयि हते ुप्िशेर रियास भी ककए, श्जससे िािी में बढ़त ेिौिो ंऔर कें द में िेडो ंके ललए िािी की प्ियममत उिलब्धता सुप्िश्चित की जा सके। प्िछले 
साल बाडमेर िे महाबार क्षते्र में 3 िये ग्ाम केन्ो ंका शुभारंभ और छह कें दो ंिर सोलर िैिल लगािे का प्िशेर रियास ककया।

नए क्लस्टर

बादंीिोरा क्लस्टर के ललए 21-22 एक बहुत ही गहि िर्थ था। सभी 300 कारीगरो ंका कौशल मूलाकंि और उन्नयि संचालि ककया गया और 20 मास्टर कारीगरो ंको उत्ाद प्िकास 
में रिणशक्षण कदया गया। इसके अप्तररक्त, कारीगरो ंके ललए बाजार अिुसंिाि, रंग और रििचृत्त काय्थशालाएं आयोश्जत की गईं श्जससे उनें प्िया्थत बाजार का जोखखम ममले। दो णशल्प 
रिबंिक रिणशक्षण और एक प्िमा्थता सामूकहक रिबंिि काय्थशाला भी आयोश्जत ककए गए। बादंीिोरा िीिस्थ रिोड्सूर कंििी ललममटेड जिू के महीिे में िंजीकृत, और बैंक खाता िंजीकरण 
िूरा हुआ। क्लस्टर के सभी प्िकास गप्तप्िधियो ंके िूरा होिे के साथ ही साथ िूरबाग, श्ीिगर एक िूण्थ क्लस्टर में िररिक्व हो गया और िूरारी प्िमा्थता कंििी का िंजीकरण हुआ। टीम 
और कारीगरो ंिे िए िमूिे प्िकधसत करिे, ऑड्थर सुरणक्षत करिे और उनें समय िर प्िष्ाकदत करिे के ललए कडी मेहित की, इस रिकार 100 से अधिक कारीगरो ंके ललए अच्छी आय 
और क्लस्टर के ललए मान्यता सुप्िश्चित हुई। काय्थशील िूंजी की व्िस्ा करिा एक चुिौती बिा रहा। राजासर, बीकािेर क्लस्टर को िशुचारण कें द (सीएफिी) की मदद से शुरू ककया 
गया था। 2021 में मुख्य उदे्श्य स्देशी चोखला ऊि के साथ रियोग करके उसे अिुकूल उत्ाद प्िकल्प की तरह बाजार में लािा। हमिे हाथ से बिुे हुए किडे के साथ रियोग ककया, और 
रिणशणक्षत कारीगरो ंको रिाकृप्तक रंगाई और ऊि को िरम महसूस करािे के ललए भारत की मोरिी को एक ममश्ण के रूि में िेश ककया। हमारे रियोगो ंके साथ-साथ, क्लस्टर देसी ऊि 
िेटिक्थ  का भी कहस्ा बि गया, जो स्देशी ऊि के साथ काम करिे िाले अन्य संगििो ंके साथ ज्ाि साझा करिे में सहायता करता ह ैऔर देसी ऊि के ललए एक इकोधससटम बिािे का 
उदे्श्यो ंरखता ह।ै इस साझदेारी िे हमारी यात्रा को और हमारे उत्ादो ंके ललए स्ायी स्ािीय कच्े माल को खोजिे के रियास को समृधद ककया।

झारखंड के रामगढ़ में रकुआ क्लस्टर रिारंणभक अिस्ा में ह,ै श्जसकी शुरुआत टीआरआई (टा्संफॉर्मग रूरल इंकडया) के साथ साझदेारी में हुई ह।ै हमारा कारीगरो ंको संगकित करके 
बासं क्लस्टर स्ाप्ित करिे का, समकालीि बाजार के ललए िए उत्ादो ंके प्िमा्थण का, और आिश्यकता होिे िर आिूर्त श्ृंखला मजबतू करिे के ललए हस्क्षिे करिे का लक्ष्य है।
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प्रशशषिण: रंगसूत्र में बहुत महत्विूण्थ हैं। हम हमारी टीमे और कारीगरो ंके ललए ज्ाि, जािकारी और अििे काम का अभ्ास करिे का अिसर सुप्िश्चित करिे का रियत्न करत ेह,ै ताकक 
िे हर साल अििे कारीगरी को और बहेतर कर सकें । 100 से अधिक कारीगर रिणशक्षण सत्र और प्िप्िि प्िरयो ंिर 60 से अधिक कम्थचारी रिणशक्षण सत्र आयोश्जत ककए गए:-

• हमारे सभी णशल्पो ंमें कौशल उन्नयि और उत्ाद प्िकास।

• उत्ादक समूह का रिबंिि और संचालि।

• उत्ादि, गुणित्ता प्ियंत्रण और सूची रिबंिि रिणशक्षण िर ध्ाि देिे के साथ ररकॉड्थ रखिा।

• ईआरिी िर रिणशक्षण - अगला सॉफ्टिेयर

• कोप्िड कदशा-प्िददेशो ंिर रिणशक्षण और सभी द्ारा उिाए जािे िाले एहप्तयाती  कदम।

• हमारी टीमो ंको सिवोत्तम ज्ाि और औजारो ंसे लैस करिे के ललए अिुिालि कदशाप्िददेशो ंिर रिणशक्षण।

• यौि उत्ीडि के खखलाफ और सभी रिकार के भेदभाि के खखलाफ प्ििा्थररत िीप्तयो ंिर प्ियममत रूि से रिणशक्षण सत्र का आयोजि ककया गया। यह सुप्िश्चित करिे के ललए कक 
एक सुरणक्षत और अिुकूल काय्थ िातािरण बिे।

• IKEA टीमो ंके साथ हमारे सत्रो ंिे हमें िररित्थि के अििे धसधदातं को िीक करिे में मदद की -मकहलाओ ंके सशक्क्तकरण िर ध्ाि कें कदत करिा – जो आर्थक और सामाश्जक 
दोिो ंहो, और एकदृढ़ व्िसाय का प्िमा्थण हो।

• सागंिप्िक मूल - हमारी सहयोगी िीमेि ऑि प्िगं्स िे काय्थशालाओ ंका आयोजि ककया, श्जससे हमें हमारे काम में हमारा माग्थदश्थि करिे िाले मूल मूलो ं- सम्ाि, समािेणशता, 
उद्यमशीलता और प्िचत्त िेततृ्व की प्िशेरता, को िहचािें में और कफर से िररभाप्रत करिे में मदद ममली।

डतीमैट खाते: हाल ही में िाररत एक कािूि में कहा गया ह ैकक िब्लिक ललममटेड कंिप्ियो ंके सभी शेयर को डीमैटीररयलाइज ककया जािा चाकहए। डीमैट खाता खोलिा एक ककिि रिकक्या 
ह ैऔर हमारे सभी कें दो,ं जहा ंकारीगर शेयरिारक  हैं, में इसे बिािे के ललए बहुत रियास ककए गए हैं। शाबाश टीम!

डडशरटि पररितजान एक अन्य क्षते्र ह ैजहा ंटीम कडी मेहित कर रही है, यह समय िर ररकॉड्थ रखिा, एक सटीकता रिाप्त करिे में सक्षम होिे का सुप्िचिि करती ह।ै इसके ललए खुदरा 
व्ािार िे माग्थ रिशस् ककया जो अगले ERP िर िूरी तरह से ऑिलाइि है,  b2b व्िसायो ंिे जििरी में यह रिकक्या शुरू की, और Finance टीमें भी इसकी तयैारी में सिार हैं।

पयाजािरण पदलचह्न: हम अििे उत्ादो ंमें, स्ायी स्ोतो ंसे किास का उियोग करिे का रियास करत ेहैं, और यह सुप्िश्चित करत ेह ैकक रंगाई इकाइया,ँ जहा ँहमारे िागे को रंगा जाता ह,ै  
रियोग ककए हुए रििाह को तटस् बिाए। कोकंक हमारा अधिकाशं काम हाथ से ककया जाता है, बहुत कम मशीिो ंका उियोग ककया जाता ह ैश्जनें प्बजली की आिश्यकता होती है। 
लेककि हमें अभी भी इस क्षते्र में बहुत काम करिा है।

हमारे प्ित्तीय सहायक भागीदारो ंके ललए प्िशेर िन्यिाद - एक्जिम बैंक और यिूुस (सोशल प्बजिेस फंड) काय्थशील िूंजी के माध्म से हमारे प्िकास को जारी रखिे के ललए।

हमारी यात्रा और हमारे प्िकास की कहािी का एक महत्विूण्थ कहस्ा बििे के ललए आि सभी का िन्यिाद। हमिे साथ -साथ रिदर्शत ककया ह ैकक एक िैप्तक, समािेशी, रचिात्मक, 
सामाश्जक उद्यम चलािा संभि ह ैजो आर्थक रूि से मजबतू है, सामाश्जक िररित्थि को बढ़ािा देता ह ैऔर इस बात का ख्याल रखता है कक हमारे प्िश् को कोई िुकसाि ि िहंुचे।

भिदीय,

सुममता घोर

रिबंि-प्िददेशक
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NOTICE
NOTICE is hereby given that the Sixteenth Annual General Meeting of the Members of Rangsutra Crafts India Limited will be held 
on Monday, the 20th Day of June, 2022 at 2:0 P.M. at Bikaner Zila Udhyog Sangh, Near Ridhi Sidhi Bhawan, Road No 5 Rani Bazar 
Industrial Area, Bikaner-334001 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1 To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2022 and 
the Report of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.  

2 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rewata Ram Panwar (DIN: 02046175), who retires by rotation but who did not offer himself 
for re-appointment. 

 To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution”. 

 “RESOLVED THAT the vacancy caused by reason of Mr. Rewata Ram Panwar not offering himself for reappointment, the Member 
of Company be and is hereby given consent to appoint Ms. Lata kachhawaha as the director of the Company, as per the applicable 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013  whose candidature has been proposed by Board of Directors in their Meeting held on 13th 
May 2022”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3 Appointment of Mr. Rahul John Noble Singh as Director of the Company

 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Ordinary Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT Mr. Rahul John Noble Singh (DIN: 06570373), whose term of office as an Additional Director of the Company 
expires at this Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company.”

 

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Rangsutra Crafts India Limited

Sd/-
Place: Bikaner
Date: 13th May 2022

Sumita Ghose
Managing Director
DIN: 1016426
R/o.: C-901 Sector-21 Surya Vihar,
Industrial Complex, Dundahera, 
Gurgaon-122016 Haryana
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Notes:

1 A member entitled to attend and vote at the 16thAnnual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote 
instead of himself/herself and the proxy need not be a member of the company. 

2 The instrument appointing the proxy, in order to be effective, must be deposited at the Company’s Registered Office, duly 
completed and signed, not less than forty-eight hours before the commencement of the meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf 
of companies/body corporates, societies, etc., must be supported by appropriate resolutions/authority, as applicable. A person 
can act as proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in the aggregate not more than 10% of the total share 
capital of the Company carrying voting rights. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a Member holding more than 10% 
of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or 
shareholder.

3 Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are requested to send a copy of the 
Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend & vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

4 Members/ Proxies are requested to fill-in and sign the attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the venue. 

5 Relevant explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act 2013 is annexed hereto.

6 As a measure of economy, members are requested to bring their copy of the Annual Report to the meeting.

7 Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying notice are available for inspection at the registered office of the Company 
during working hours between 9:00 A.M. to 5:00 P.M. except holidays upto the date of Annual General Meeting.

8 The Statutory Registers under the Companies Act, 2013 will be available for inspection by the members at the venue of AGM.

9 In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of name will be entitled to vote.

10 As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), the facility of making nomination is available for 
the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members holding shares in single name & in physical form are advised to 
make Nomination in respect of their shareholding in the Company. Interested Members are requested to send the Nomination 
Form annexed with the Annual Report duly filed in with complete details to Mr. Om Prakash Sahu at A-39 Karni Nagar, Bikaner 
(Rajasthan) - 334001

11 Members are requested to note that as per Section 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013 dividends not encashed/claimed 
within seven years from the date of declaration will be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF). After 
transfer of the said amount to IEPF, no claims in this respect shall lie against IEPF or the Company.

 Members wishing to claim dividends, which remain unclaimed, are requested to correspond with Mr. Om Prakash Sahu, Regional 
Head, West at A-39 Karni Nagar, Lalgarh, Bikaner (Rajasthan)-334001

12 Pursuant to the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has uploaded the details of unpaid and unclaimed 
amounts lying with the Company as on 31st March 2021 on the website of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and on the website 
of the Company.

13 Updation of Members’ Details”:

 The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs under the Act requires the Company/ 
Share Registrars and Transfer Agents to record additional details of Members, including their PAN details, email address, bank 
details for payment of dividend, etc. A form for capturing the additional details is appended in the Annual Report. Members 
holding shares in physical form are requested to submit the filled in form to the Company. 

14 To support the ‘Green Initiative’, the Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses are requested to register the same 
at which they would like to receive Notice/ Annual Reports electronically to Mr. Om Prakash Sahu at A-39 Karni Nagar, Lalgarh, 
Bikaner (Rajasthan) - 334001

15 The Route Map showing directions to reach to the venue of the 16th Annual General Meeting is annexed.

16 Voting through electronic means

I. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 the 
Company is pleased to provide members facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at 
the Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services. The 
facility of casting the votes by the members using an electronic voting system from a place other than venue of the AGM 
(“remote e-voting”) will be provided by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).
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II. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members attending the meeting who 
have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper.

III. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but shall not be 
entitled to cast their vote again.

IV. The remote e-voting period commences on Friday, 17th June, 2022 (9:00 AM) and ends on Sunday, 19th June, 2022 (5:00 PM). 
During this period members’ of the Company, holding shares in physical form, as on the cut-off date of 13st June, 2022 may 
cast their vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the 
vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

V. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:-

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode

 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in 
their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

 Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders  Login Method
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL.

1 Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://
eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the 
e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” 
which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your 
existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be 
able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access 
to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting 
page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDLand 
you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote 
during the remote e-Voting period.

2 If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available 
at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or 
click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/
Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your 
User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After 
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDLand you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

4 Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 
Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for seamless 
voting experience.
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Individual Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat mode) 
login through their depository 
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon 
logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you 
will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, 
wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting.

B) Login Method for e-Voting shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and 
shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

Details on Step 1 is mentioned below:

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

5 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

6 Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholders’ 
section.

7 A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen. Please refer the PDF filed received by NSDL on mail containing the User ID and Password. 

 Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your 
existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on  e-Voting and you 
can proceed to Step 2 i.e. cast your vote electronically.

8 Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL) or 
Physical

 Your User ID is:
a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 
12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then 
your user ID is 12**************

c) For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the 
company
For example if folio number is 1*** and EVEN is 101456 then 
user ID is 101456001***

9 Your password details are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was 
communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the 
system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is 
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open 
the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is 
your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares 
held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’. 

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders 
whose email ids are not registered.
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10 If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.
nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 
mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of 
NSDL.

11 After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

12 Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

13 After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Details on Step 2 is given below:

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1 After successful login at Step 1 you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and 
whose voting cycle

2 Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period Now you are ready 
for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

3 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which 
you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

4 Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

5 You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

6 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG 
Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 
signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to csarungupta@gmail.com with a copy marked 
to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2 It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the 
correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User 
Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3 In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user 
manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990 and  1800 22 44 30  or send a request to Mr. Anubhav Saxena atevoting@nsdl.co.in

VI. A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-voting but shall not be 
allowed to vote again at the AGM through ballot paper.  

VII. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the 
depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM 
through ballot paper.

VIII. Mr. Arun Kumar Gupta, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. 5551) has been appointed for as the Scrutinizer 
for providing facility to the members of the Company to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and 
transparent manner. 

IX. The Chairperson shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow voting 
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with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “Ballot Paper” for all those members who are present at the AGM but have not 
cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

X. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast at the meeting and 
thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the employment 
of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer’s report 
of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairperson or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall 
countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

XI. The Results declared alongwith the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company and on the 
website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairperson or a person authorized by him in writing.

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Rangsutra Crafts India Limited

Sd/-
Place: Bikaner
Date: 13th May 2022

Sumita Ghose
Managing Director
DIN: 1016426
R/o.: C-901 Sector-21 Surya Vihar,
Industrial Complex, Dundahera, 
Gurgaon-122016 Haryana

ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF SPECIAL BUSINESS

(PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013)
The following Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 sets out all material facts relating to special 
business mentioned in the accompanying Notice and should be taken as forming part of the Notice. 

ITEM NO. 3

Mr. Rahul John Noble Singh (holding DIN: 06570373) being appointed as an Additional Director of the Company with effect from 19th 
October 2021 pursuant to Section 161 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and holds office upto the date of the Sixteenth Annual General 
Meeting of the Company and is eligible for appointment. 

Except Mr. Rahul John Noble Singh, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are, in any way, concerned 
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the resolution set forth in Item No. 3 for the approval of members

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Rangsutra Crafts India Limited

Sd/-
Place: Bikaner
Date: 13th May 2022

Sumita Ghose
Managing Director
DIN: 1016426
R/o.: C-901 Sector-21 Surya Vihar,
Industrial Complex, Dundahera, 
Gurgaon-122016 Haryana
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BOARD’S REPORT

To

 The Members, 

Your Directors have pleasure in submitting their Sixteenth Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited 
Statements of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2022.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

 The Company’s financial performance for the year under review along with previous year figures is given hereunder:

                                                                                                              (Amount in Rs.’000))

Particulars For the Year ended 
31st March, 2022

For the Year ended 
31st March, 2021

Revenue from Operations 244676.64 202649.40
Other Income 19665.85 9170.80
Total Income 264342.49 211820.20
Profit/(Loss) before Exceptional Items and Tax
Less: Exceptional Items 
Profit/ (Loss) before Tax 11149.33 15535.95
Tax Expense:
Current Tax
Deferred Tax

(4076.92)
(253.84)

(4943.20)
304.31

Profit/(Loss) for the year 6818.57 10897.06
Earnings Per Equity Share:
 Basic
 Diluted

11.11
11.11

17.21
17.21

2. STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS

During the year under review, your Company has done a total business of Rs. 24,46,76,640/- (Rupees Twenty 
Four Crore Forty Six Lakhs Seventy Six Thousand Six Hundred and Forty only) as compared to Rs. 20,26,49,400/- 
(Rupees Twenty Crore Twenty Six Lakhs Forty Nine Thousand and Four Hundred only) in the previous year which 
was increased by 21% from the previous years. 

Your Company has earned a profit of Rs. 68,18,570/- (Rupees Sixty Eight Lakhs Eighteen Thousand Five Hundred 
and Seventy Only) as compared to Rs. 1,08,97,060/- (Rupees One Crore Eight Lakhs Ninety Seven Thousand and 
Sixty Only) for the corresponding previous year.

3. CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

 During the year under review, there is no change in the nature of business of the Company.

4. DIVIDEND

 During the Financial Year 2021-22, The Board of Directors had declared Interim Dividend on 6,33,180 Equity Shares 
of Rs. 10/- each at the rate of Rs. 10/- per share (100% of paid up value) aggregating to Rs. 63,31,800/- .

5. SHARE CAPITAL 

 Authorized Share Capital 

 As on 31st March 2022, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company stands at Rs. 1,10,00,000/- (Rupees One Crore 
Ten Lakhs only) divided into 11,00,000 (Eleven Lakhsonly) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each. During 
the year under review, there was no change in the Authorized Share Capital of the Company. 
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 Paid up Share Capital

 The Paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on 31st March 2022 stands at Rs. 61,37,220/- (Rupees Sixty 
One Lakhs Thirty Seven Thousand Two Hundred Twenty only) divided into 6,13,722 (Six Lakhs Thirteen Thousand 
Seven Hundred Twenty Two only) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each. During the year under review, 
the Company has not issued any shares or any convertible instruments. 

 However, During the Financial Year, paid up capital of the Rangsutra Crafts India Limited has been reduced from 
Rs. 63,31,800/- to Rs. 61,37,220/- due to buyback of 19458 equity shares of the Company with effect from 23rd 
November, 2021.

6. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

 The Company has not transferred any amount to the Reserves Account during the year under review.

7. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 
OCCURED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND 
THE DATE OF THE REPORT 

 No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between 31st 
March 2022 and the date of writing this report.

8. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

 The particulars as prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules framed there under, 
are set out herein below:

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

 Your Company is engaged in contract manufacturing and trading activity. As the Company has not undertaken 
manufacturing activity directly, the disclosure under the applicable rules is not required to be provided. 

 However, your Company has generally taken all reasonable efforts to conserve energy. Company has planted 
a 10 KW solar unit in the Ridmalsar office which is generating approximately 1000 KWH Power every month.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

 The Company has not imported any technology and hence, the requirement of technology absorption is not 
applicable.

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

 The Foreign Exchange earnings is Rs. 19,74,68,358.79 (Rupees Nineteen Crore Seventy Four Lakhs Sixty Eight 
Thousand Three Hundred Fifty Eight Rupees and Seventy Nine Paisa Only) and outgo is Rs. 73,167.66 (Rupees 
Seventy Three Thousand One Hundred Sixty Seven and Sixty Six Paisa Only).

9. STATEMENT CONCERNING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE 
COMPANY

 The Company’s risk management framework is based on a clear understanding of various risks like business risk, 
operation risk, strategic risk, market risk, financial risk, exchange risk, inflationary risk, social/political/ legislative 
risk etc. Your Company faces some such risks, the key ones being changing consumer preferences, slowdown in 
economy, intensifying competition, and any unexpected changes in regulatory framework.

 To ensure growth, it is necessary that risks be effectively identified, analyzed and then mitigated by means of 
appropriate control measures. 

 We have a risk management system in place, which enables us to recognize and analyze risks in time and take 
appropriate action.

 This system is implemented as an integral part of our business through protocols and operations manual which 
includes recording, monitoring, and controlling internal enterprise business risks and addressing them through 
informed and objective strategies.
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10. DETAILS OF POLICY DEVELOPED AND IMPLEMENTED BY THE COMPANY ON ITS CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY 
INITITATIVES

 The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as the said 
provisions are not applicable.

11. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEE OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013

 During the financial year 2020-22, the Company had not given/made any loans, guarantees or investments covered 
under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

12. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS MADE WITH RELATED PARTIES

 Pursuant to the sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the particulars of the transactions with related parties is furnished in Annexure-I (Form 
No. AOC-2) and it is attached to this report. Transactions with related parties are disclosed in Notes to the Financial 
Statements.

13. AUDITOR’S REPORT

 The Notes to Accounts referred to in the Auditor’s Report are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any 
further comments. 

 Pursuant to provisions of section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory Auditors have not reported 
any incidence of fraud against the Company by officers or employees of the Company during the year under review.

14. COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE 
OF THEIR DUTIES

 The provisions of Section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013(‘the Act’) relating to constitution of Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee are not applicable to the Company and hence the Company has not devised any 
policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial remuneration, Directors qualifications, positive 
attributes, independence of Directors and other related matters as provided under Section 178(3) of the Act.

15. DIRECTORS AND OTHER KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

 During the year under review, Ms. Dipti (holding DIN: 05220205) has resigned from the directorship of the Company 
with effect from 29th June, 2021 and Mr. Rahul John Noble Singh (holding DIN: 06570373) has appointed as an 
Additional Director of the Company on 19th Oct 2021. 

 At the time of writing this report, the Board of Directors of your Company comprises Ms. Sumita Ghose (holding 
DIN: 01016426), Mr. Rewata Ram Panwar (holding DIN: 02046175), Mr. Vivek Rishi (holding DIN: 02970015), Mr. 
Dulichand Solanki (holding DIN:07157982), Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma (holding DIN:01392856), Mr. Nanuram 
(holding DIN: 08738660) and Mr. Rahul John Noble Singh (holding DIN: 06570373).

Board Members have proposed in its board meeting held on 13th May, 2022 to appoint Ms. Lata kachhawaha as 
a Director of the Company in the ensuing Annual General Meeting subject to approval of Shareholders in place of 
retiring Director, Mr. Rewata Ram Panwar (holding DIN: 02046175).

Ms. Lata kachhawaha is working since 1986 in the field of social work focused on the livelihood activity of handicraft 
for rural artisans. She has linked artisans of more the 50 villages of Barmer district and did the conservation work 
of traditional craft. She has imparted skill, design, marketing, exposure visits, market survey, exhibitions etc. 
and provided handicraft as a livelihood option to near about 10500 artisans. Along with she has also worked 
on other social issues like education, health & hygiene, disability, agriculture, diary, adolescent, natural resource 
management, disaster management, women empowerment etc.

She started Craft Development Center for artisans in 1992 and brought it to a sustainable mode. Presently more 
than 1000 artisans are getting continue work under it and running their livelihood.

16. DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

 The provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to the appointment of Independent Directors 
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do not apply to our Company.

17. ADHERENCE TO SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ISSUED BY INSTITUTE OF COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA

 The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. Secretarial Standard-1 and Secretarial Standard-2, 
relating to Meetings of the Board of Directors and General Meetings, respectively, have been duly followed by the 
Company.

18. NUMBER OF BOARD MEETING CONDUCTED DURING THE YEAR UNDER REVIEW

 The Board met 8 (Eight) times during the Financial Year 2021-22 on 29th June 2021, 21st July 2021, 04th September 
2021, 18th September 2021, 19th October 2021,  13th December 2021 and 25th February 2022 and 11th March 2022.

19. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

 During the year under review, there was no change in Stakeholders Relationship Committee (‘Committee’). 

 The Committee consists of Mr. Devendra Kumar Sharma, Director of the Company as Chairperson of the 
Committee, Mr. Om Prakash, Mr. Isharam, Mr. Samu Bai, Mr. Hasan Ali Rangrez and Ms. Pappu Devi as Members of 
the Committee. During the year under review, a meeting of members of Committee was held on 11th March 2022. 
All the members of the Committee were present at the said meeting. 

 The committee reviews and ensures redressal of investor grievances and provides continuous guidance to improve 
the service levels for investors.

20. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

 In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Board hereby submits its 
responsibility Statement:-

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed alongwith 
proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with  the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

21. SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

 The Company does not have any Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Associate Companies.

22. DEPOSITS

 The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits during the year under review.

23. ANNUAL EVALUATION

 The provisions of Section 134 (3)(p) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to annual evaluation of Board are not 
applicable.

24. STATUTORY AUDITORS

 M/s. Daiya Tiwari &Soni, Chartered Accountants were re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of your Company at 
the 13th Annual General Meeting held on 28th September 2019, for a term of five consecutive years. As per the 
provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of Auditors is required to be ratified by 
Members at every Annual General Meeting. However, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide its Notification dated 
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07th May 2018, has dispensed with the requirement of ratification of Auditor’s appointment by the shareholders 
every year. Hence, the resolution relating to ratification of Auditor’s appointment is not included in the Notice of 
the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 Your Company has received a certificate from M/s. Daiya Tiwari & Soni, Chartered Accountants, confirming that 
they are not disqualified from continuing as the Statutory Auditors of the Company. 

 Pursuant to provisions of section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory Auditors have not reported 
any incident of fraud during the year under review.

25. DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL MECHANISM

 The provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings 
of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

26. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

 The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements.

27. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

 The provisions of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rule, 2014 are not applicable to the Company.

28. DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT THE WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & 
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

 The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment 
of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) 
has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. This ensures a free and fair enquiry 
process with clear timelines.

 All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

 No cases of sexual harassment were reported in the financial year 2021-22 or calendar year 21. 

29. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS

 The provisions related to maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section 
(1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act 2013 are not applicable on your company.

30. ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS 

 There were no significant and material orders issued against the Company by any Regulatory Authority, Court or 
Tribunal affecting the going concern status and Company’s operation in future.

31. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

 Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates, consultants and various 
Government Authorities for their continued support extended to your Companies activities during the year under 
review. Your Directors also acknowledges gratefully the shareholders for their support and confidence reposed on 
your Company.

For and On behalf of 
Rangsutra Crafts India Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Place: Bikaner
Date: 13th May 2022

Sumita Ghose
Managing Director

DIN: 1016426
R/o.:C-901 Sector-21 Surya Vihar,

Industrial Complex, Dundahera,
Gurgaon-122016 Haryana

Dulichand Solanki
Director

DIN: 7157982
R/o.: Behind MS College 

Ranisar Bass, Bikaner-334001
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Form No. AOC-2
[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014]

Form of disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties re-
ferred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions 
under third proviso thereto 

1 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis – NOT APPLICABLE

(a) Name(s) of the related party and Nature of relationship -

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/ transactions -

(c) Duration of contracts/arrangements/ transactions -

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions 
including  the value, if any:

-

(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or 
transaction

-

(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: -

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any: -

(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general 
meeting as required under first proviso to section 188 of the Act

-

2 Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis

 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis for the year ended March 31 
2022 are as follows:

(a) Name(s) of the related party and Nature of relationship FABINDIA LIMITED 
(Formerly known as Fabindia Overseas Private 
Limited )
(Two Directors of the Company are the members of 
related party)

(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/ transactions Supply of goods or materials

(c) Duration of contracts/arrangements/ transactions Ongoing

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transactions including  the value, if any:

Not Applicable

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: Not Applicable

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: Not Applicable

For and On behalf of 
Rangsutra Crafts India Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Place: Bikaner
Date: 13th May 2022

Sumita Ghose
Managing Director

DIN: 1016426
R/o.:C-901 Sector-21 Surya Vihar,

Industrial Complex, Dundahera,
Gurgaon-122016 Haryana

Dulichand Solanki
Director

DIN: 7157982
R/o.: Behind MS College 

Ranisar Bass, Bikaner-334001
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Rangsutra Crafts India Limited Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Rangsutra Crafts India Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022 the statement of Profit and Loss (Including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significantaccounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so required and give 
a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the stateof affairs of 
the Company as at March 31 2022 its comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), 
changes in equity and its cashflows for the year ended on thatdate.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with 
the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that 
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code 
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the financial statements, which describes the uncertainties and the impact of COVID-19 pandemic 
on the company’s operations and results as assessed by the management. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this 
matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis; Board’s Report including Annexure to 
Board’s Report, Company’s annual return but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s reportthereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance, and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of 
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
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the going concern basis of accounting unless the Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A Further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in Annexure 
A. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of 
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section143 of the Companies Act, 2013 we give in the Annexure B a statement 
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement 
of Changes in Equity, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 
of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply withthe Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2022 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of theAct.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure C”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 in our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given tous:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 
any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company.

Place:Bikaner  For Daiya Tiwari & Soni
Date:13-5-2022  Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 22082385AJESBP6962  (FRN No. – 004268C)

(CA Brij Gopal Daiya)   
(Partner) 

(M. No. – 082385)
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ANNEXURE -A OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a materialmisstatement  resulting from fraud is higher than 
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internalcontrol.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013 we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness 
of suchcontrols.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a 
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the financial statements of thecurrent period and are therefore the key audit matters. 
Wedescribe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law orregulation precludes public disclosure about the matter 
orwhen, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that amatter should not be communicated in our report 
becausethe adverse consequences of doing so would reasonablybe expected to outweigh the public interest benefits 
of suchcommunication.

Place:Bikaner  For Daiya Tiwari & Soni
Date:13-5-2022  Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 22082385AJESBP6962  (FRN No. – 004268C)

(CA Brij Gopal Daiya)   
(Partner) 

(M. No. – 082385)
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Annexure “B” to the Auditor’s Report
The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the financial statements 
for the year ended 31 March 2022 we report that:

1 In respect of its fixed assets:

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and 
situation of fixed assets.

b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its  fixed  assets by which fixed assets are 
verified in a phased  periodical manner, which   in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of the 
Company and nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records 
of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

2 In respect of its Inventories:

a) The Physical verification of inventories has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the management. 
And as per the information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on physical 
verification

3 The company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships 
or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 Accordingly, the 
provisions of clause 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

4 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,the Company has complied with the 
provisions of Section 185 and 186 of  theAct, with respect to the loans given, investments made, guaranteesand  
securitiesgiven.

5 The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of the directives issued by the 
Reserve Bank of India, provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Act, any other relevant provisions of the Act and the 
relevant rules framedthereunder.

6 The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub- section (1) of section 148 
of the Companies Act, 2013 for any of products of the company.

7 In respect of statutory dues:

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis   of our examination of the records 
of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory 
dues including Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Services tax, duty of 
Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited during the year by 
the  Company with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, 
no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods 
and Services tax, duty of Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2022 
for a period of more than six  months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of income tax or sales 
tax or Service tax or Goods and Services tax or duty of Customs or duty of Excise or Value added tax which 
have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute.

8 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, we are of the opinion 
that the company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to a financial institution or bank, Government during the 
year.

9 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company did not raise any 
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the 
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable

10 According to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its 
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the course of our audit.

11 According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has paid for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated 
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by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

12 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

13 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where 
applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the 
applicable accounting standards.

14 According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
convertible debentures during the year

15 According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. 
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

16 According to the information and explanations given to us ,the Company is not required to be registered under 
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934

Place:Bikaner  For Daiya Tiwari & Soni
Date:13-5-2022  Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 22082385AJESBP6962  (FRN No. – 004268C)

(CA Brij Gopal Daiya)   
(Partner) 

(M. No. – 082385)
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“Annexure: C” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 ofSection 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Rangsutra Crafts India Ltd. (“the Company”) 
as of March 31 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on 
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants ofIndia”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and 
deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financialstatements, whether due to 
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial  control with 
reference to financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain tothe maintenance of records 
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are 
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of thecompany; and (3) provide 
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of 
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and 
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become 
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inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may 
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference 
to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating 
effectively as at March 31 2022 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the 
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”.

Place:Bikaner  For Daiya Tiwari & Soni
Date:13-5-2022  Chartered Accountants
UDIN: 22082385AJESBP6962  (FRN No. – 004268C)

(CA Brij Gopal Daiya)   
(Partner) 

(M. No. – 082385)
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BALANCE SHEET AS PER IND AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022

NOTES  As at 31st Mar 2022  As at 31st Mar 2021 
 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 3A 14844.02 10331.17
CAPITAL WORK-IN PROGRESS 3A  -  - 
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 3B 743.04 117.09
INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT 3B  -  - 
FINANCIAL ASSETS

INVESTMENTS  -  - 
LOANS 4 504.69 382.10
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 5 7645.87 12736.93

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET) 6 1021.78 1101.38
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 7 32.31 64.26
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 24791.71 24732.94

CURRENT ASSETS
INVENTORIES 8 35649.25 29805.48
FINANCIAL ASSETS
   TRADE RECEIVABLES 9 24633.99 49581.36
   CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 10 11834.70 2123.98

BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS

11 43.85 52.83

LOANS  -  - 
CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET) 12 334.03 831.48
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 13 16680.94 17279.07
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 89176.76 99674.21

TOTAL ASSETS 113968.47 124407.15

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY 
EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL 14 6137.22 6331.80
OTHER EQUITY 15 20268.21 22957.64
TOTAL EQUITY 26405.43 29289.44

LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES  -  - 
PROVISIONS 16 4653.84 3397.05
OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  -  - 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 4653.84 3397.05

CURRENT LIABILITIES
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

BORROWINGS 17 9998.10 16130.09
TRADE PAYABLES 18

 - Total Outstanding Dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises  

1525.24 623.44

 - Total Outstanding Dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises  

8799.67 8774.34
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OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 19 3213.12 5547.07
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 20 56009.73 55037.39
PROVISIONS 21 3363.35 5608.35
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 82909.20 91720.67

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 113968.47 124407.15

CORPORATE INFORMATION & SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES 

1,2

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS 36
OTHER NOTES 31-39

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
“As per our Report of even date”

FOR DAIYA TIWARI & SONI   ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 004268C

 Sd/-  Sd/-  Sd/- 
BRIJ GOPAL DAIYA  SUMITA GHOSE  DULICHAND SOLANKI 
PARTNER  Managing Director  Director 
Membership Number: 082385  DIN: 01016426  DIN: 07157982 
Place: Bikaner  Place: Bikaner  Place: Bikaner 
Date: 13th May, 2022 Date: 13th May, 2022 Date: 13th May, 2022
UDIN: 22082385AJESBP6962 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AS PER IND AS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
NOTES  For the year ended  For the year ended 

  31ST MARCH 2022   31ST MARCH 2021 
 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

INCOME

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 22 244676.64 202649.40
OTHER INCOME 23 19665.85 9170.80
TOTAL INCOME 264342.49 211820.19

EXPENSES
COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED 24 179357.39 117658.72
PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE 25  - 9960.57
(INCREASE)/DECREASE IN INVENTORIES 26  (6,633.55) 12801.69
EXCISE DUTY  -  - 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 27 33671.07 27937.80
FINANCE COSTS 28 2483.53 3264.68
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE 3A & 3B 2847.29 2605.76
OTHER EXPENSES 29 41467.44 22055.03
TOTAL EXPENSES 253193.16 196284.25

PROFIT BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AND TAX 11149.33 15535.95
EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS  -  - 
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 11149.33 15535.95
TAX EXPENSE:
     CURRENT TAX 30  (4,076.92)  (4,943.20)
     DEFERRED TAX 30  (253.84) 304.31

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 6818.57 10897.06

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)

A. ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE RECLASSIFIED TO STATEMENT OF 
PROFIT AND LOSS
ACTUARIAL GAIN/(LOSS) ON PROVISION FOR GRATUITY  (626.33) 255.65
INCOME TAX RELATING TO ITEMS THAT WILL NOT BE 
RECLASSIFIED TO PROFIT OR LOSS

174.24  (71.12)

B. ITEMS THAT WILL BE RECLASSIFIED TO STATEMENT OF 
PROFIT AND LOSS
INCOME TAX RELATING TO ITEMS THAT WILL BE RECLASSIFIED 
TO PROFIT OR LOSS

 -  - 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR  (452.08) 184.53

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 6366.49 11081.59

EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE
   BASIC 37  11.11  17.21 
   DILUTED 37  11.11  17.21 

CORPORATE INFORMATION & SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES 

 1,2 

OTHER NOTES 31-39
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
“As per our Report of even date”

FOR DAIYA TIWARI & SONI   ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 004268C

 Sd/-  Sd/-  Sd/- 
BRIJ GOPAL DAIYA  SUMITA GHOSE  DULICHAND SOLANKI 
PARTNER  Managing Director  Director 
Membership Number: 082385  DIN: 01016426  DIN: 07157982 
Place: Bikaner  Place: Bikaner  Place: Bikaner 
Date: 13th May, 2022 Date: 13th May, 2022 Date: 13th May, 2022
UDIN: 22082385AJESBP6962 
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022

 For the year ended  For the year ended 
 31st March 2022  31st March 2021 

 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX BUT AFTER EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS 11149.33 15535.95
ADJUSTMENTS FOR NON-CASH ITEMS:

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION 2847.29 2605.76
INTEREST EXPENSE 2483.53 3264.68
INTEREST INCOME  (470.99)  (796.63)
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets  (33.12) 115.93
REMEASUREMENT OF EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATION  (626.33) 255.65

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 15349.72 20981.34

ADJUSTMENTS FOR CHANGES IN WORKING CAPITAL:
(INCREASE)/DECREASE IN TRADE RECEIVABLES 24947.37  (12,966.89)
(INCREASE)/DECREASE IN INVENTORIES  (5,843.77) 15707.93
(INCREASE)/DECREASE IN LOANS  (122.59) 459.24
(INCREASE)/DECREASE IN OTHER ASSETS 639.07  (3,352.80)
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN TRADE PAYABLES 927.13  (10,041.02)
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES  (2,333.95) 5216.63
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN OTHER LIABILITIES 972.34 5409.13
INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN PROVISIONS  (988.21)  (223.68)

CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) OPERATIONS 33547.13 21189.88
TAXES (PAID) / RECEIVED (NET OF WITHHOLDING TAXES) 497.45 708.53
Less: Income Tax paid  (4,076.92)  - 

NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 29967.66 21898.41

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
PURCHASE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE 
ASSETS 

 (8,052.19)  (2,138.78)

PROCEEDS FROM SALE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND 
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

36.86 65.00

INVESTMENTS IN BANK DEPOSITS (WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY OVER 3 
MONTHS)

5091.06  (896.13)

PROCEEDS FROM BANK DEPOSITS (WITH ORIGINAL MATURITY OVER 3 
MONTHS)

 -  - 

INTEREST RECEIVED 470.99 796.63
DIVIDEND RECEIVED  -  - 
Asset Written Off 62.36 139.93
NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (2,390.92)  (2,033.35)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
PROCEEDS/PAYMENTS FROM SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS  (4,001.90)  (18,503.12)
Share Buyback  (2,918.70)  - 
Dividend  (6,331.80)  (21.92)
INTEREST PAID   (2,483.53)  (3,264.68)

NET CASH FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING ACTIVITIES  (15,735.93)  (21,789.72)
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NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 11840.81  (1,924.66)

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS - OPENING BALANCE  (6.10) 1918.56
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS - CLOSING BALANCE 11834.70  (6.10)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS  11,840.8  (1,924.66)

NOTES:
1 The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” set out in the Ind AS - 7 “Statements 

of Cash Flows”.

2 Figures in bracket indicate cash outflow.

3 Previous year figures have been regrouped and recast wherever necessary to conform to current year’s classification.

4 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year consist of cash on hand 
and balance 

31st March 2022 31st March 2021

with banks as follows:  (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

CASH ON HAND 95.55 53.45
BALANCE WITH BANKS 
- IN CURRENT ACCOUNTS 11739.15 2070.53
- IN DEPOSIT WITH ORIGINAL MATURITIES UPTO THREE MONTHS  -  - 
BANK OVERDRAFTS USED FOR CASH MANAGEMENT PURPOSE  -  (2,130.09)
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  11,834.7  (6.10)

Effective 1st April, 2017, the Company adopted the amendment to Ind AS-7, which require the entities to provide 
disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, 
including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation between 
the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities, to meet the 
disclosure requirement. The adoption of the amendment did not have any material impact on the financial statements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
“As per our Report of even date”

FOR DAIYA TIWARI & SONI   ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 004268C

 Sd/-  Sd/-  Sd/- 
BRIJ GOPAL DAIYA  SUMITA GHOSE  DULICHAND SOLANKI 
PARTNER  Managing Director  Director 
Membership Number: 082385  DIN: 01016426  DIN: 07157982 
Place: Bikaner  Place: Bikaner  Place: Bikaner 
Date: 13th May, 2022 Date: 13th May, 2022 Date: 13th May, 2022
UDIN: 22082385AJESBP6962 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,2022

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

 PARTICULARS  NOTE  AMOUNT IN RS. ‘000 
BALANCE AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2020

 14 

6331.80
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year  - 
BALANCE AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021 6331.80
Changes in Equity Share Capital during the year  (194.58)
BALANCE AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022 6137.22
B. OTHER EQUITY

(Amount in Rs.’000)

 PARTICULARS RESERVES AND SURPLUS
OTHER 

COMPREHENSIVE 
INCOME

 TOTAL 
 GENERAL 
RESERVE 

 SECURITIES 
PREMIUM 
RESERVE 

 RETAINED 
EARNINGS 

 REMEASUREMENTS 
OF THE NET DEFINED 
BENEFIT PLANS (NET 

OF TAX) 
BALANCE AS AT 1ST APRIL, 2020 1608.82 4206.48 6144.14  (83.38) 11876.05
Profit for the year  -  - 10897.06  - 10897.06
Dividend paid  -  - 
Remeasurements of the net defined 
benefit plans (net of tax)

 -  -  - 184.53 184.53

BALANCE AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2021 1608.82 4206.48 17041.20 101.15 22957.64
Profit for the year  -  - 6818.57 6818.57
Dividend paid  (6,331.80)  (6,331.80)
Remeasurements of the net defined 
benefit plans (net of tax)

 -  -  -  (452.08)  (452.08)

Share buy-back  (2,724.12)  (2,724.12)
BALANCE AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2022 1608.82 1482.36 17527.97  (350.94) 20268.21

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
“As per our Report of even date”

FOR DAIYA TIWARI & SONI   ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 004268C

 Sd/-  Sd/-  Sd/- 
BRIJ GOPAL DAIYA  SUMITA GHOSE  DULICHAND SOLANKI 
PARTNER  Managing Director  Director 
Membership Number: 082385  DIN: 01016426  DIN: 07157982 
Place: Bikaner  Place: Bikaner  Place: Bikaner 
Date: 13th May, 2022 Date: 13th May, 2022 Date: 13th May, 2022
UDIN: 22082385AJESBP6962 
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NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2022
1 Corporate Information

RangsutraCrafts India Limited (‘the Company’) is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956

The Company is engaged in the business of sale of readymade garments and made up articles of textiles and home 
furnishing items, the said goods are partially manufactured in the premises of the Company as well as fabricated 
in the premises of job workers.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2022 were approved and authorized for 
issue in accordance with the resolution of the Company’s Board of Directors on 13h May 2022

2 Significant Accounting Policies

a) Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards 
(hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as 
amended from time to time.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis 
except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is 
initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy 
hitherto in use.

b) Critical accounting judgments and key source of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make 
judgments,estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue, expenses, assets and 
liabilities and the accompanying disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result 
in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in 
future periods. Although these estimates are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events 
and actions, actual results could differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are 
reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the 
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of revision and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the critical judgements and estimations that have been made by the management in the 
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the significant effect on the amount 
recognized in the financial statements and/or key sources of estimation uncertainty that may have a significant 
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year.

(i) Employee Benefits:

 Provision for employee benefits in the nature of gratuity and unpaid leave balance is estimated on 
actuarial basis using a number of assumptions which include assumptions for discount rate, future salary 
increases, mortality rates, attrition rates for employees, return on planned assets, etc. Any changes in 
these assumptions will impact the carrying amount of these provisions. Key assumptions are disclosed in 
Note No. 39

(ii) Income Tax:

 Tax expense is calculated using applicable tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or  
substantively enacted. In arriving at taxable profit and tax bases of assets and liabilities the Company  
adjudges taxability of amounts in accordance with tax enactments, case law and opinion of tax Counsel, 
as relevant. Where differences arise on tax assessment, these are booked in the period in which they are 
agreed or on final closure of assessment.
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(iii) Decommissioning liability:

 The liability for decommissioning costs is recognized when the Company has obligation to perform store/
shop restoration activity.The recognition and measurement of decommissioning provisions involves the 
use of estimates and assumptions whichincludes the timing of handing over the licensed premises which 
would depend upon the lease period, the carpet area and pre-tax rate applied for discounting.

(iv) Impairment of financial assets:

 The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and 
expected credit loss rates. The Company uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the 
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company’s past history, existing market conditions as well 
as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

(v) Depreciation/ amortization, useful lives and residual value of Property, Plant and Equipment/ Intangible 
Assets:

 Property, Plant and Equipment / Intangible Assets are depreciated / amortized over their estimated 
useful lives, after taking into account estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated 
useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in order to determine the amount of depreciation / 
amortization to be recorded during any reporting period. The useful lives and residual values are based on 
the Company’s historical experience with similar assets and take into account anticipated technological 
changes. The depreciation / amortization for future periods is revised if there are significant changes 
from previous estimates.

(vi) Provisions:

 Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a 
future outflow of funds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be 
reliably estimated. The timing of recognition and quantification of the liability requires the application 
of judgement to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The carrying amounts 
of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take account of changing facts and 
circumstances.

c) Operating Cycle

 All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating 
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule Ill to the Act and Ind AS-1 — “Presentation of Financial 
Statements” based on the nature of products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and 
their realization in cash and cash equivalents.

d) Property, Plant and Equipment

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if 
any. Cost comprises of all cost of purchase, construction and expenditure that is directly attributable to 
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for its intended use. Subsequent expenditures 
relating to Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalized only when it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements 
upon sale or retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss when incurred.

(ii) Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, ifany. 
Cost comprises of all cost of purchase, construction and expenditure that is directly attributable to 
bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for its intended use. Subsequent expenditures 
relating to Property, Plant and Equipment are capitalized only when it is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with these will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured 
reliably, The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements 
upon sale Of retirement of the asset and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Repairs and maintenance costs are recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss when incurred.
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(iii) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment has been charged on Written Down Value method on the 
life of assets and in the manner prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 on prorate basis 
from the date of additions and/or disposal.

(iv) The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period and the effect of any changes in estimate is accounted for prospectively.

(v) Cost of Property, Plant and Equipment not ready for intended use on the date of balance sheet 
aredisclosed as “Capital Work- in- Progress’’.

e) Intangible Assets

(i) Intangible assets are recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the 
assets will flow to the enterprise and cost of the asset can be measured reliably in accordance with the 
notified Ind AS— 38 on “Intangible Assets”.

(ii) Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial 
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated 
impairment losses (if any).

(iii) Intangible assets are amortizedon a straight-line basis over a period of ten years.

f) Impairment of Non-Financial Assets- Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

 The Company assesses at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that any property. Plant and 
equipment and intangible assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists the recoverable amount (i.e. 
higher of fair value less cost of disposal and value in use) of the asset is estimated, or, when it is not possible 
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the recoverable amount of the cash generating 
unit to which the asset belongs is estimated. If the recoverable amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) 
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is 
reduced to its recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 The impairment loss recognized in the prior accounting period is reversed if there has been a change in the 
estimate of recoverable amount.

g) Financial Instruments

 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Financial Assets

Financial assets include investments, trade receivables, advances, security deposits and cash and cash 
equivalents.

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are initially recognized at fair value, except for trade receivables which are initially 
measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of 
financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to or deducted from the fair 
value on initial recognition of financial assets. Purchase and sale of financial assets are recognized using 
trade date accounting.

Subsequent Measurement

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is 
to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial 
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI):

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a 
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial 
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit and Loss (FVTIDL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories is measured at fair value through 
profit and loss.

Equity Investments

All equity investments are measured at fair value. with value changes recognized in Statement of Profit 
and Loss, except for those equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the value 
changes in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’.

Impairment of Financial Assets 

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset (or a group of financial assets) 
such as investments, trade receivables, advances and security deposits held at amortized cost and 
financial assets that are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are tested for 
impairment based on evidence or information that is available without undue cost or effort, Expected 
credit losses are assessed and loss allowances recognized if the credit quality of the financial asset has 
deteriorated significantly since initial recognition.

(ii) Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities primarily comprise of trade payables

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized at fair value and in case of loans, net of directly attributable cost. 
Fees of recurring nature are directly recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost.

Subsequent Measurement

Financial liabilities arecarried at amortized cost using the effective interest method, for trade and 
otherPayablesmaturing within one year from the balance sheet date. The carrying amounts approximate 
fair

Value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

(iii) De-recognition of Financial Instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
financial asset expire or it transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under 
Ind-AS109 “Financial Instruments”.

A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) is derecognized from the Company’s Balance Sheet 
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

(iv) Offsetting of Financial Instruments

 Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there 
is legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net 
basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be 
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event 
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

h) Inventories

 Inventories (including stock-in-transit) are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of 
inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present Location and condition.Net realizable value represents the estimated selling price 
less all estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

i) Foreign Currencies Transactions and Translations

 The functional currency of the Company is the Indian Rupee. These financial statements are presented in 
Indian Rupee.

 Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates 
of the transactions.
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 Foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the relevant functional 
currency at exchange rates in effect at the Balance Sheet date. The gains and losses resulting from such 
translations are included in net profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 Non-monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at fair 
value are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary assets and non-monetary liabilities denominated in a foreign currency and measured at historical 
cost are translated at the exchange rate prevalent at the date of the transaction.The gain or loss arising on 
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain 
or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or 
loss is recognized in Other Comprehensive Income or Statement of Profit or Loss are also recognized in Other 
Comprehensive Income or Statement of Profit or Loss, respectively).

 Transaction gains or losses realized upon settlement of foreign currency transactions are included in 
determining net profit for the period in which the transaction is settled.

Sr. No. PARTICULARS AMOUNT IN RS.
(2021-22)

AMOUNT IN RS.
(2020-21)

1. Expenditure In Foreign Currency 73,167.66 7,74,315.05
2. Earnings in Foreign Currency 19,74,68,358.79 15,89,17,044.06

j) Revenue Recognition

 Effective April 1 2018 the Company has adopted Ind AS 115: Revenue from Contracts with Customers which 
establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be 
recognized. the Company has adopted Ind AS 115using the cumulative catch-up transition method, applied 
to contracts that were not completed as on the transition date i.e. April 1 2018 Accordingly, the comparative 
amounts of revenue and the corresponding contract assets and liabilities have not been retrospectively 
adjusted. The impact of the adoption of the standard on the financial statements of the Company is 
insignificant.

(i) Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any 
tradediscounts, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government such as 
Goodsand Services Tax, etc. Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performanceobligation upon transfer 
of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount thatreflects the consideration the 
Company expects toreceive in exchange for those goods or services.

(ii) Sales of Goods:

 Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred 
to the customer, generally on delivery of the goods. The Company considers, whether there are 
otherpromises in the contract in which there are separateperformance obligations, to which a portion of 
thetransaction price needs to be allocated(e.g., warranties, customer loyalty points),In determining the 
transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the 
existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the 
customer (if any).

 (iii) Export Benefits

 Revenue from export benefits arising from Duty entitlement pass book (DEPB scheme) and duty drawback 
scheme are recognized as and when the same are processed and admitted by the concerned authorities 
and are received during the year.

(iv) Consultancy and receipts from projects,as disclosed under miscellaneous income, are based on services 
provided and invoices raised during the year.

(v) In case of operating leases, rental income is accounted for on accrual basis.

(vi) Insurance claims/Government Claims, as disclosed under miscellaneous income, are accounted for as 
and when processed and accepted by the Insurance Companies/Government Authorities.

(vii) Dividend income from investments is recognized when the Company’s right to receive payment is 
established.
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(viii) Interest income is accounted for by using effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross 
carrying amount of a financial assets. When calculating the EIR, the Company estimates the expected 
cash flow by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the 
expected credit losses.

k) Employee Benefits

(i) Short-Term Employee Benefits

 The undiscounted amount of short term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the 
services rendered by employees are recognized as an expense during the period when the employees 
render the services.

(ii) Post-Employment Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans 

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed 
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further 
amounts.

The Company makes specified monthly contribution towards Provident Fund. The Company’scontribution 
is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee 
renders the related service.

Defined Benefit Plan 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

The liability in respect of gratuity is calculated using the Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over 
the period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from employees’ services.The fair value 
of any plan assets is deducted from the present value of the defined benefit obligation to determine the 
amount of deficit or surplus. The net defined benefit liability / (asset) is determined as the amount of the 
deficit or surplus, adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The 
net defined benefit liability / (asset) is recognized in the balance sheet.

Defined benefit costs are recognised as follows:

a) Service cost in the Statement of Profit and Loss

b) Net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) in the Statement of Profit and Loss

c) Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability / (asset) in Other Comprehensive Income

Compensated Leave of Absence 

Accrual for leave encashment benefit is based on actuarial valuation as on the date of balance sheet in 
pursuance of the Company’s leave rules.

I) Share-Based Payments

 The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a 
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of equity instruments that will 
eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity.

 At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments 
expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognized in the Statement 
of Profit and Loss such that the cumulative expenses reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding 
adjustment to the Stock Option Outstanding Account.

 The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted 
earnings per share.

m) Tax Expenses

 The income tax expense or credit for the period is the taxpayable on the current period’s taxable income 
based onthe applicable income tax rate adjusted by changes indeferred tax assets and liabilities attributable 
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to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. Tax expense comprises current and deferredtax. Tax is 
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in the 
Other Comprehensive Income or in Equity. In which case, the tax is also recognized in Other Comprehensive 
Income or Equity.

Current Tax 

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the 
taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance 
Sheet date.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are reviewed 
at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit 
will be realized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in 
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the future tax consequences to the extent it is probable that 
futuretaxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Minimum Alternative Tax 

Minimum Alternative Tax credit is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing  
evidence that the company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewedat 
each Balance Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extentthere 
is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax duringthe 
specified period.

n) Earnings Per Equity Share

Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profitor loss attributable to the equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equities shares outstanding during the 
period.

Diluted earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to the equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic 
earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued 
upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

o) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the company has a present obligation (Legal or constructive) as a result of 
past event, is possible that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefit will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. These estimates arereviewed 
at each reporting date and adjusted to reflectthe current best estimates.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that 
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

p) Cash and Cash Equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cheques on hand, cash in transit, balance with banks in 
current accounts, balance in deposit accounts with original maturities of three months or less that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank 
overdrafts are shown under Short Term Borrowings in the Balance Sheet.

q) Dividend Distribution

 The final dividend on shares is recorded as a liability on the date of approval by the shareholders, and  
interim dividends are recorded as a liability on the date of declaration by the Company’s Board of Directors.
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r) Leases

 Leases under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified 
as finance leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Finance Lease

Assets acquired under finance lease are capitalized at fair value or present value of the minimum lease 
payments at the inception of the lease, whichever is lower. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included 
in the Balance Sheet as a finance lease obligation.Leased assets are depreciated over the useful life/ lease 
term of the asset.

Operating Lease 

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term except where another systematic basis is more representative of time pattern in 
which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

s) Fair Value Measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
liability takes place either -

-In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

-In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized 
within the fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy classifies the inputs used to measure fair value into 
three levels, which are as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilitiesthat the entity can access 
at the measurement date.

Level 2- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3- Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

 For financial assets and liabilities maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date and which are 
not carried at fair value, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these 
instruments.

t) Borrowing Costs

 Borrowing Cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the 
arrangement of borrowings. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
production of qualifying assets, as defined in Ind AS-23 — “Borrowing Costs” are added to the cost of those 
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.All other borrowing 
costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit andLoss in the period in which they are incurred.

u) Recent Accounting Pronouncements Standards issued but not yet effective

 On 30thMarch 2020 the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) issued the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules. 2020 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment 
Rules, 2020 notifying Ind-AS 116 ‘Leases’ and amendments to certain Ind-AS. The Standard amendments are 
applicable to the Company with effect from 1st April 2020

 Ind AS-116: Leases

 The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases 
for both parties to a contract i.e. the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lease accounting 
model for lessee and requires the lessee to recognizeright of use assets and lease liabilities for all leases with 
a term of more thantwelve months, unless the underlying asset is low value in nature.
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 As per Ind AS 116 the lessee needs to recognize depreciation on rights of use assets and finance costs on 
lease liabilities in the statement of profit and loss. The lease payments made by the lessee under the lease 
arrangement will be adjusted against the lease liabilities.

 A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in the lease term or a 
change in an index or rate used to determine lease payments, The remeasurement normally also adjusts the 
right-of-use asset,

 Currently, operating lease expenses are charged to the statement of profit and loss. Ind AS 116 substantially 
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17

 The standard has no impact on the actual cash flows of the Company, However, operating lease payments 
currently expensed as operating cash outflows will instead be capitalised and presented as financing cash 
outflows in the statement of cash flows.

 The Company is currently evaluating the impacton account of implementation of Ind AS 116 whichmight have 
significant impact on key Profit &Lossand Balance Sheet ratio i.e. earnings before interest,tax, depreciation 
and amortisation (EBITDA), assetcoverage, debt equity, interest coverage, etc.

Other Amendment

The MCA has notified below amendments which are effective 1st April 2019:

a) Appendix C to Ind AS 12 Income taxes

b) Amendments to Ind AS 103 Business Combinations

c) Amendments to Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments

d) Amendments to Ind AS 111 Joint Arrangements

e) Amendments to Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits

f) Amendments to Ind AS 23 Borrowing Costs

g) Amendments to Ind AS 28 Investments to Associates and Joint Ventures

Application of above standards are not expected to have any significant impact an the Company’s financial 
statements.
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NOTES ANNEXED TO AND FORMING PART OF THE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2022

 3B. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 (Amount in Rs.’000) 

 Computer 
Software  Trade Marks 

 Website 
Development 

Expenses 

 Total 
Intangible 

Assets 
 As at April 1, 2020 996.97 86.16 59.20 1142.33
 Add: Additions made during the year  -  -  -  - 
 Less: Disposals / Adjustments during the year 552.15  -  - 552.15
 As at March 31, 2021 444.82 86.16 59.20 590.18
 Add: Additions made during the year 904.00  -  - 904.00
 Less: Disposals / Adjustments during the year 38.46  -  - 38.46
 As at March 31, 2022 1310.36 86.16 59.20 1455.72

 Accumulated Amortization 

 As at April 1, 2020 781.67 65.74 50.36 897.77
 Add: Amortization expense for the year 90.90 5.23 3.99 100.11
 Less: On Disposals / Adjustments during the year 524.79  -  - 524.79
 As at March 31, 2021 347.78 70.97 54.34 473.09
 Add: Amortization expense for the year 264.05 9.52 1.90 275.47
 Less: On Disposals / Adjustments during the year 35.87  - 35.87
 As at March 31, 2022 575.96 80.49 56.24 712.69

 Net Carrying Value 
 As at March 31, 2022 734.40 5.68 2.96 743.04
 As at March 31, 2021 97.04 15.20 4.86 117.09

4 NON-CURRENT LOANS  As at 31st March 2022  As at 31st March 2021 
(Unsecured, Considered Good)  (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 
Security Deposits 504.69 382.10

504.69 382.10

5 OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

Deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months* 7645.87 12736.93

7645.87 12736.93

*includes a fixed deposit under lien against overdraft facility 
from Axis Bank.

6 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)  Increase/(Decrease) As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

The balance comprises temporary 
differences attributable to:
Property, Plant and Equipment and 
Intangible Assets

 (79.60) 1021.78 1101.38

Other Timing Differences  -  -  - 

 (79.60) 1021.78 1101.38
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7 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
(Unsecured, Considered Good)  (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

Prepaid Lease Rentals 32.31 64.26

32.31 64.26

8 INVENTORIES As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

Raw Materials-Garment Fabrics 11720.99 12510.78
Finished Goods 8937.18 8689.27
Work in progress 14991.08 8605.43

35649.25 29805.48

 - As per inventory taken and valued by the Management. 

9 TRADE RECEIVABLES As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
 Unsecured  (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 
 Considered Good 24633.99 49581.36
 Having significant increase in Credit Risk  -  - 

24633.99 49581.36
 Less: Allowance for Credit Losses  -  - 

24633.99 49581.36

10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

Balances with Banks
 In Current Accounts 11739.15 2070.53

Cash on Hand 95.55 53.45

11834.70 2123.98

11 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH 
EQUIVALENTS

As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

Earmarked Balances with Banks
Unpaid Dividend 43.85 52.83

43.85 52.83

12 CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET) As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

Balance at the beginning 831.48 1540.00
Less: Current Tax payable for the year (Other than 
Provision)

 (3,366.98)  - 

Add: Taxes paid 3366.98 416.93
Less: Tax provision of earlier years written off  (497.45)  (1,125.45)

Advance Income Tax 334.03 831.48
*Provision for Tax is shown seperately



RANGSUTRA CRAFTS INDIA LIMITED |42

13 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

(Unsecured, Considered Good)

Prepaid Lease Rentals 30.76 23.00
Other Prepaid Expenses  - 109.23
Advance to Supplier 4801.61 4947.07
Goods and Service Tax (GST) Input Credit 11801.11 12199.78
Staff Advance 28.00  - 
Other Advances 19.47  - 

16680.94 17279.07

14 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL  As at 31st March 2022  As at 31st March 2021 
No. of Shares  (Amount in 

Rs.’000) 
No. of Shares  (Amount in 

Rs.’000) 

AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (31st March 2019: 
Rs.10/- each)*

 1,100,000 11000.00  1,100,000 11000.00

11000.00 11000.00

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID UP
 613,722 6137.22  633,180 6331.80

6137.22 6331.80

*’During the FY ended 31st March 2022 19,458 shares having face value of Rs. 10 per share bought back by the 
company.

a). Terms/rights attached to Equity Shares
The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share (31st March 2019: Rs.10 per 
share).  Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors 
is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim 
dividend.  In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of 
the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding. The Company 
declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees. 

b). The details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares as at 31st March 2022 and 31st March 2021 is set 
out below:

Name of shareholder  As at 31st March 2022  As at 31st March 2021 
 No. of Shares  Shares held 

(%) 
 No. of Shares  Shares held 

(%) 

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (31st March 2018: 
Rs.10/- each) fully paid up
Fabindia Overseas Private Limited  201,135 32.77%  201,135 31.77%
Sumita Ghose  111,033 18.09%  110,240 17.41%
Rahul John Noble Singh  43,630 7.11%  42,560 6.72%

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received 
from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial 
ownerships of shares.
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c). The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding as at 31st March 2022 and 31st March 2021 is set 
out below:

Particulars  As at 31st March 2022  As at 31st March 2021 

Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each (31st March 2019: 
Rs.10/- each) fully paid up
Number of shares in the beginning  633,180  633,180 
Add: Shares issued during the period  -  - 
Less: Shares Bought Back  19,458  - 
Number of shares at the end  613,722  633,180 

 15 OTHER EQUITY As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

Summary of Other Equity Balance
General Reserve 1608.82 1608.82
Securities Premium Reserve 1482.36 4206.48
Retained Earnings 17527.97 17041.20
Other Comprehensive Income  (350.94) 101.15

20268.21 22957.64

Nature and purpose of reserves:
a) General Reserve
This reserve represents appropriation of Profits after dividend from Retained Earnings. The same can be utilized 
by the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Securities Premium Reserve
The amount received in excess of face value of equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium Reserve. 

c) Retained Earnings
Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, 
dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders.

16 NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

Provision for Employee Benefits
- Gratuity* 3925.00 2924.59
- Leave Encashment* 728.84 472.46

4653.84 3397.05

*Based on actuarial valuation as on the given dates.

17 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

SECURED
Working Capital Term Loan (WCTL) from:

Exim Bank* 9998.10 14000.00

SECURED
Bank Overdraft from:

Axis Bank**  - 2130.09

9998.10 16130.09
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The Company has the following credit facilities taken from various banks carrying interest rate between 6.75% 
to 12.25% p.a.:
a). Maximum Borrowing Sanctioned Limits:
 Exim Bank - Rs. 24 million.
 Yunus Social Business Fund Bengaluru Private Limited - Rs 20 million
b).  Nature of Security provided to said banks is:
 *Working capital limit is secured by first pari passu charge on all the current assets of the Company.
c).  Maturity date and terms of repayment
 WCTL facilities - Rs 10 Million are payable in monthly installments in 3 months starting from November 

2021. Rs 10 Million are repayable in monthly installments in 3 months starting from October 2021.
d)  The Company has not defaulted on repayment of loan and interest during the year.

18 TRADE PAYABLES As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

 For Goods and Services  
 - Total Outstanding Dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises  

1525.24 623.44

 - Total Outstanding Dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises  

8799.67 8774.34

10324.91 9397.77

19 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

Unpaid/Unclaimed Dividend* 43.85 52.75
Other Accruals 2430.01 2826.88
Bonus Payables 739.26 2667.45

3213.12 5547.07

*There is no amount due and outstanding to be credited to 
Investor Education and Protection Fund.

 20 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

Advance from Customers 55096.35 54475.72
Statutory Liabilities 913.38 561.67

56009.73 55037.39

21 CURRENT PROVISIONS As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

Provision for Employee Benefits
- Gratuity* 1381.25 627.18
- Leave Encashment* 204.40 113.01
Provision of Light, Electricity& Telephone 27.00 70.00
Provision of Income Tax 1656.20 4798.17
Provision for Audit Fee 94.50  - 

3363.35 5608.35
*Based on actuarial valuation as on the given dates.
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22 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS  For the Year Ended 
 31st March 2022  31st March 2021 

 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 
Sale of Products (including excise duty)

Traded 242029.21 200515.05
Other Operating Revenue

Export Incentives* 2586.16 2125.32
   Job Work Income 19.95  - 
   Discount on Purchase 41.32 9.03

244676.64 202649.40
 *Includes Duty Drawback. 

23 OTHER INCOME  For the Year Ended 
 31st March 2022  31st March 2021 

 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 
Rental Income  - 63.84
Interest Income

 Bank Deposits 351.42 734.44
 Leased Deposits measured at amortized cost 22.59 26.76
 Others 96.98 35.43

Freight Outward 56.77 92.25
Consultancy Fee Received 13139.55 3579.91
Leave Encashment Provision written back  (347,774)  (144,036)
Miscellaneous Income  - 1.49
Export Licence 4680.98 4780.72
Profit on Sale of Fixed Asset 33.12  - 
Project Expenses Reimbursed 1632.22  - 

19665.85 9170.80

24 COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED  For the Year Ended 
 31st March 2022  31st March 2021 

 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 
Raw Material and Other Components:
Opening Stock 12510.78 15417.02
Add: Purchases 118601.50 70879.89
Add: Job Work Charges 43309.36 30654.82
Add: Freight Inward 3303.29 2247.60
Add: Other Direct Expenses 13353.46 10970.17

191078.38 130169.50
Less: Closing Stock 11720.99 12510.78

179357.39 117658.72

25 PURCHASES OF STOCK-IN-TRADE  For the Year Ended 
 31st March 2022  31st March 2021 

 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 
 Purchase of Finished Goods -Traded  - 9960.57

 - 9960.57

26 (INCREASE)/DECREASE IN INVENTORIES  For the Year Ended 
 31st March 2022  31st March 2021 

 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 
 Opening Inventory 
 Finished Goods-Traded 8689.27 15456.04
 Stock in Process 8605.43 14640.35

17294.71 30096.39
 Closing Inventory 
 Finished Goods-Traded 8937.18 8689.27
 Stock in Process 14991.08 8605.43

23928.26 17294.71

 Total (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories  (6,633.55) 12801.69
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27 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE  For the Year Ended 
 31st March 2022  31st March 2021 

 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

Salaries and Wages 30146.26 25317.50
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 1616.53 1265.89
Defined Benefit Plan Expense (Refer Note No.35) 1128.15 875.22
Staff Welfare Expense 780.12 479.18

33671.07 27937.80

28 FINANCE COSTS  For the Year Ended 
 31st March 2022  31st March 2021 

 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 
Interest Expense

Banking Facilities 2483.53 3264.68

2483.53 3264.68

29 OTHER EXPENSES  For the Year Ended 
 31st March 2022  31st March 2021 

 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 
Rent 4055.12 3695.53
Legal and Professional Charges 13500.69 6130.09
Payment to Auditors* 180.00 190.00
Directors Remuneration 3501.45 1221.94
Postage, Telex and Telephones 518.52 261.30
Traveling and Conveyance 3039.76 984.87
Consumable Office Supplies 470.90 513.30
Insurance 577.80 221.13
Power and Fuel 1156.50 847.15
Repair and Maintenance

Computers, Air Conditioners and Other Equipments 466.59 265.10
Others 1873.47 1461.44

Packing, Freight, Clearing and Forwarding 227.99 525.57
Forex Gain & Loss 170.48 9.57
Bank Charges 182.14 105.29
Selling Expenses 7146.59 4622.72
Project Grant Expenses 478.50 434.46
Share Buyback Tax 589.28  - 
Miscellaneous Expenses 3034.16 565.59
Employee Training Expenses 297.51  - 

41467.44 22055.03
*Payments to Auditors#
Statutory Auditors

As Audit Fee 95.00 155.00
As Tax Audit Fee 20.00 20.00
For Other Services

Taxation Matters 65.00 15.00
 Total 180.00 190.00

30 TAX EXPENSE  For the Year Ended 
 31st March 2022  31st March 2021 

(a) Tax expense recognised in Profit or Loss  (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 
Cuurent Tax

In respect of the current year 4023.18 4943.20
Adjustments/(credits) related to previous years (net) 53.74  - 

Total (A) 4076.92 4943.20

Deferred Tax and MAT Credit Entitlement
Orignation and reversal of temporary differences 79.60  (233.19)
MAT Credit Entitlement  -  - 

Total (B) 79.60  (233.19)

Total (A+B) 4156.52 4710.01



RANGSUTRA CRAFTS INDIA LIMITED |47

(b) Amounts recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
The tax (charge)/credit arising on income and expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income is as 
follows:

On items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Remeasurements gain/(loss) of the Defined Benefit Plans  (174.24) 71.12

Total  (174.24) 71.12

(c) Reconciliation of Effective Tax Rate
The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit before Exceptional Items and Tax 10697.25 15720.48
Tax using the Company’s Domestic Tax Rate @ 27.82% (Prev 
Year 26%)

2975.98 665.44

Reduction in tax  rate

Tax Effect of:
Tax related to previous years  -  - 
Effect of tax related to expenses not deductible for income 
tax

593.52 593.52

Effect of Brought Forward Losses  -  - 
Effect for Deferred Tax 79.60  (233.19)
Effect of tax due to different tax rate on certain items  -  - 
Effect due to Tax under Section 115JB of Income Tax Act  -  - 
Effect of income not taxable  -  - 
Rounding off Tax (including interest)  -  - 
Income tax recognised in profit or loss 3649.09 1025.77

31 Financial Instruments – Fair Value Measurement

Financial Instruments by Category  (Amount in Rs.’000) 
Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021

FVTPL FVOCI Amortized 
Cost FVTPL FVOCI Amortized 

Cost
Financial Assets 
Loans (Non-Current)  -  - 504.69  -  - 382.10
Other Financial Assets (Non-Current)  -  - 7645.87  -  - 12736.93
Trade Receivables (Current)  -  - 24633.99  -  - 49581.36
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Current)  -  - 11834.70  -  - 2123.98
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash 
Equivalents (Current)

 -  - 43.85  -  - 52.83

Total  -  - 44663.10  -  - 64877.22

Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings (Current)  -  - 9998.10  -  - 16130.09
Trade Payables (Current)  -  - 10324.91  -  - 9397.77
Other Financial Liabilities (Current)  -  - 3213.12  -  - 5547.07
Total  -  - 23536.13  -  - 31074.93
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Financial Instruments by category
Particulars Total Carrying Value

31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Financial Assets 
Loans (Non-Current) 504.69 382.10
Other Financial Assets (Non-Current) 7645.87 12736.93
Trade Receivables (Current) 24633.99 49581.36
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Current) 11834.70 2123.98
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents (Current) 43.85 52.83
Total 44663.10 64877.22

Financial Liabilities 
Borrowings (Current) 9998.10 16130.09
Trade Payables (Current) 10324.91 9397.77
Other Financial Liabilities (Current) 3213.12 5547.07
Total 23536.13 31074.93

Fair Value Hierarchy: 

Level 3 : All amortized cost financial assets and liabilities are classified as level 3 inputs.

Notes:

1. Trade receivables comprise amounts receivable from the sale of goods and services.

2.  The Management considers that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair 
value.

3. Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-term deposits held by the Company. The carrying amount 
of these assets approximates their fair value.

4. Loans (non-current) comprise of security deposits paid which have been discounted and the same 
approximates their fair value.

5. Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and on-going costs. 
The Management considers that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value.

6. Financial assets and liabilities maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date and which are not 
carried at fair value, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these 
instruments. 

32 Financial Risk Management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
(a) Credit Risk;
(b) Liquidity Risk; and
(c) Market Risk

Risk Management Framework
The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s 
risk management framework. The risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks 
faced by the Company to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. 
Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and 
company activities. The Company’s Board of Directors oversees how the management monitors compliance with 
Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and review adequacy of the risk management framework 
in relation to the risks faced by the Company.
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(a) Credit Risk:
Credit risk is a risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligation resulting in financial loss 
to the Company. The credit risk for the Company primarily arises from credit exposures to trade receivables, 
deposits with landlords for properties taken on leases and other receivables including balances with banks. 
 
The Company mitigates this risk by attempting to ensure appropriate credit worthiness of its customers.

The Company also carries credit risk on lease deposits with landlords for properties taken on leases, for which 
agreements are signed and property possessions timely taken for operations. The risk relating to refunds after 
premises shut down is managed through successful negotiations or appropriate legal actions, where necessary.

The Company’s experience of delinquencies and customer disputes have been minimal. 

(b) Liquidity Risk:
Liquidity risk is a risk that the Company may not be able to meet its financial obligations on a timely basis through 
its cash and cash equivalents, and funds available by way of committed credit facilities from banks.

Management manages the liquidity risk by monitoring rolling cash flow forecasts and maturity profiles of 
financial assets and liabilities. This monitoring includes financial ratios and takes into account the accessibility of 
cash and cash equivalents and additional undrawn financing facilities.

Maturities of Financial Liabilities
The table below summarises the maturity profile (remaining period of contractual maturity at the balance sheet 
date) of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash flows.

The details of the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as of 31st March 2022 are as follows:
(Amount in Rs.’000)

Particulars Less than 1 year Between 1 and 5 
years

More than 5 years Total

Short Term Borrowings 9998.10  -  - 9998.10
Trade Payables 10324.91  -  - 10324.91
Unpaid/Unclaimed Dividend 43.85  -  - 43.85
Other Accruals 2430.01  -  - 2430.01

22796.87  -  - 22796.87

The details of the contractual maturities of financial liabilities as of 31st March 2021 are as follows:
(Amount in Rs.’000)

Particulars  Less than 1 year  Between 1 and 5 
years 

 More than 5 years  Total 

Short Term Borrowings 16130.09  -  - 16130.09
Trade Payables 9397.77  -  - 9397.77
Unpaid/Unclaimed Dividend 52.75  -  - 52.75
Other Accruals 2826.88  -  - 2826.88

28407.49  -  - 28407.49

(c) Market Risk:
Market risk is the risk that changes in market place could affect the future cash flows to the Company. Market 
risk is attributable to all market risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables and 
payables. The Company is not exposed to market risk related to foreign exchange rate risk as there are no 
receivables or payables in foreign currency.
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33 Capital Management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard continuity as a going concern, provide 
appropriate return to shareholders and maintain a cost efficient capital structure. The capital includes issued 
equity capital, share premium and all other reserves attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of 
the Company’s capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. Management monitors the return on 
capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Board of Directors seek to maintain a balance of higher returns by sound capital composition and accordingly 
the Company does not have any long term borrowings as at 31st March 2022 and 31st March 2021. The Company 
has availed short term credit facilities from banks during the year ended 31st March 2022 and 31st March 2021.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of total debt to total equity on a periodic basis. The following table 
summarizes the capital of the Company: 

(Amount in Rs.’000)
Particulars As at 31st March 

2022
As at 31st March 

2021

Long Term Borrowings  -  - 
Short Term Borrowings 9998.10 16130.09
Total Debt 9998.10 16130.09

Equity Share Capital 6137.22 6331.80
Other Equity 20268.21 22957.64
Total Equity 26405.43 29289.44

Debt-Equity Ratio  0.38  0.55 

The Company’s objective is to keep the debt equity ratio as low as possible which it has achieved in these years.

34 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

As required by Ind AS - 24 “Related Parties Disclosures”, the disclosure are as follows:

A. Related parties with whom the Company had transactions:

(i) Parties which have significant influence over the Company (either individually or with others)
    - Fabinida Overseas Private Limited 

- Rangsutra Crafts Dunia Producer Company Limited

(ii) Key Management Personnel (KMP) and their relatives
    - Sumita Ghose - Managing Director

- Anando Ghose Managing Director’s Son
Other Directors 
    - Rewata Ram Panwar - Director
    - Vivek Rishi - Nominee Director
    - Devendra Kumar Sharma - Nominee Director
    - Dulichand Solanki - Director
    - Nanuram - Director
    - Rahul John Nobel Singh (w.e.f Oct , 2021) - Director
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B. Summary of the transactions with related parties is as follows :
Nature of transaction Entities which 

significantly influence 
the Company (either 
individually or with 

others)

Key Management 
Personnel, Other 

Directors and their 
relatives

TOTAL

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

Sale of Goods 34354.48 8093.21  -  - 34354.48 8093.21
Remuneration (included under 
Salary and Wages)

 -  - 3501.45 1221.94 3501.45 1221.94

Interest Received 96.91  - 96.91  - 
Interest Paid  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Reimbursement of Expenses Paid  -  - 135.76 39.42 135.76 39.42
Advance Received  - 1500.00  -  -  - 1500.00
Purchase of  Goods and Services 15184.03 211.47 466.95  - 15650.98 211.47
Advance Received Paid Back  - 1500.00  -  -  - 1500.00

(Amount in 
Rs.’000)

Outstanding Balances  Entities which significantly influence 
the Company (either individually or 

with others) 

 Key Management Personnel and 
their relatives 

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

Outstanding Payables 7201.89  - 148.52  83,856 

Outstanding Receivables  - 1859.90  -  - 

Terms and conditions:
1. All transactions with these related parties are priced on an arm’s length basis.
2. None of the balances outstanding are secured.
3. Transactions relating to dividends were on the same terms and conditions that applied to other shareholders. 

Compensation of Key Management Personnel
The remuneration of director and other member of Key Management Personnel during the year was as follows:

(Amount in Rs’000)
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Short-Term Benefits 3501.45 1221.94
Post-Employment Benefits  -  - 
Other Long-Term Benefits  -  - 
Share-Based Payments  -  - 
Termination Benefits  -  - 
Total compensation paid to key management personnel 3501.45 1221.94

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognized as an expense during the reporting period 
related to key management personnel.

C. Disclosure in respect of all related party transactions during the year as follows:

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

Sale of Goods
Fabindia Overseas Private Limited 30047.37 8093.21
Rangsutra Crafts Dunia Producer Company Limited 4307.11  - 
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Remuneration (included under Salary and Wages)
Sumita Ghose 2426.54 1221.94
Rahul John Noble Singh 1074.91  - 

Interest Received
Fabindia Overseas Private Limited 96.91  - 

Reimbursement of Expenses Paid
Sumita Ghose 16.95 14.20
Rahul John Noble Singh 74.56  - 
Devendra Kumar Sharma 44.25 25.22

Advance Received
Fabindia Overseas Private Limited  - 1500.00

Advance Received Paid Back/ Adjusted
Fabindia Overseas Private Limited  - 1500.00

Purchase of  Goods and Services
Fabindia Overseas Private Limited 208.18 211.47
Rangsutra Crafts Dunia Producer Company Limited 14975.85  - 
Anando Ghosh (Consultancy) 466.95  - 

Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

Outstanding Receivable
Fabindia Overseas Private Limited  - 1859.90
Rangsutra Crafts Dunia Producer Company Limited 4199.10 3160.00

Outstanding Payable
Fabindia Overseas Private Limited 7201.89  - 
Sumita Ghose 148.52 83.86
Rahul John Noble Singh 63.00 44.82
Rangsutra Crafts Dunia Producer Company Limited 872.42 386.17

35 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Company has classified the various benefits provided to employees as under:-

(a) Contribution to Provident Fund (Defined Contribution Plan)
An amount of Rs. 16,16,533/- (Previous Year- Rs. 12,65,894/-) has been recognized as an expense in respect 
of the Company’s contribution to Provident Fund deposited with the relevant authorities and has been shown 
under personnel expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

(b) Contribution to Gratuity Fund (Defined Benefit Plan)
The Company has defined benefit gratuity plan (unfunded) wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit 
equivalent to 15 days of total basic salary last drawn for each completed year of service. Gratuity is payable to 
all eligible employees of the Company on retirement, separation, death or permanent disablement, in terms of 
the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972.

The most recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation for 
gratuity were carried out as at March 31, 2021. The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the 
related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
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(c) Compensated Leave of Absence Plan (Other Long Term Benefit Plan)
The Company permits encashment of leave accumulated by their employees on retirement and separation. 
The liability for encashment of privilege leave is determined and provided on the basis of actuarial valuation 
performed by an independent actuary at the date of the balance sheet.

Actuarial valuation was done in respect of the aforesaid defined benefit plan and other long term benefit plan 
based on the following assumptions-
Economic Assumptions
The discount rate and salary growth rate are the key financial assumptions and should be considered together; 
it is the difference or ‘gap’ between these rates which is more important than the individual rates in isolation.

Discount Rate
The discounting rate is generally based upon the market yields available on Government bonds at the accounting 
date with a term that matches that of the liabilities & salary growth rate. For the current valuation a discount 
rate of 6.60 % p.a. (Previous Year 7.60% p.a.) compound, has been used in consultation with the employer.

Salary Growth Rate
The salary growth rate usually consists of at least three components, viz. seniority, regular increments and 
promotional increase and price inflation. The assumptions used are summarized in the following table:

Gratuity (Unfunded) Compensated Absences
Earned Leave (Unfunded)

2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

Discount rate (per annum) 7.30% 6.90% 7.30% 6.90%
Future salary increase (per annum) 6.00% 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
In Service Mortality 100% of IALM 

(2012-14)
100% of IALM 

(2012-14)
100% of IALM 

(2012-14)
100% of IALM 

(2012-14)

Retirement Age 58 years 58 years 58 years 58 years
Withdrawal rates : Ages/ withdrawal rate   
-upto 30 years 3.00% 3.00% 3.00% 3.00%
-upto 44 years 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
-above 44 years 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00%

 (Amount in Rs.’000) 
Gratuity (Unfunded) Compensated Absences 

(Unfunded)
2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21

1. Reconciliation of opening and closing 
balances of Defined Benefit Obligation
Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning 
of the year

3551.77 2932.20 585.46 441.43

Interest Cost 245.07 193.53 40.40 29.13
Current Service Cost 883.08 681.70 189.91 144.37
Benefits Paid  -  -  -  - 
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on obligation 626.33  (255.65) 117.47  (29.47)
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of 
the year

5306.25 3551.77 933.24 585.46

2. Reconciliation of opening and closing 
balances of fair value of Plan Assets
Fair value of Plan Assets at the beginning of 
the year

 -  -  -  - 

Expected return on Plan Assets  -  -  -  - 
Employer Contribution  -  -  -  - 
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Benefits Paid  -  -  -  - 
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on plan assets  -  -  -  - 
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the 
year

 -  -  -  - 

3. Reconciliation of fair value of Assets and 
Obligations
Fair value of Plan Assets  -  -  -  - 
Present value of Obligation 5306.25 3551.77 933.24 585.46
Amount recognized in Balance Sheet 
(Surplus/(Deficit))

 (5,306.25)  (3,551.77)  (933.24)  (585.46)

4. Expenses recognized in Statement of 
Profit and Loss
Current service cost 883.08 681.70 189.91 144.37
Net Interest Cost 245.07 193.53 40.40 29.13
Net actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized in the 
period

 -  - 117.47  (29.47)

Net Cost 1128.15 875.22 347.77 144.04

5. Expenses recognized in Other 
Comprehensive Income
Actuarial (Gain)/Loss for the year on 
Obligation

626.33  (255.65)  -  - 

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss for the year on Plan 
Assets

 -  -  -  - 

Net (Income)/Expense in OCI 626.33  (255.65)  -  - 

6. Sensitivity Analysis of the Defined Benefit Obligation:
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, 
expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on 
reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at end of the reporting period, while holding all other 
assumptions constant. The result of Sensitivity analysis is given below:

(Amount in Rs.)
Particulars  31st March 2022  31st March 2021 

Increase by 
1.00%

Decrease by 
1.00%

Increase by 
1.00%

Decrease by 
1.00%

Impact of the change in Discount Rate 
(1.00% movement)

 (3,159,969)  4,031,429  (3,159,969)  4,031,429 

Impact of the change in Salary Increase Rate 
(1.00% movement)

 4,039,062  (3,147,449)  4,039,062  (3,147,449)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change due to these are not 
calculated.
7. Description of Risk Exposures:
Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such the 
Company is exposed to various risks as follow -  
A). Interest Rate Risk - A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing the above 

benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability.
B). Salary Escalation Risk -  Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the 

rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of oblgation will have a bearing on the plan’s 
liabilty.

C).  Demographic Risk - The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the 
liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the 
assumption.

D). Liquidity Risk - This may arise due to non-availabilty of enough cash / cash equivalent to meet the liabilities 
or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time.
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36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
A The Company has Nil contingent liabilities as at 31st March 2022 (31st March 2021: Nil).

B The Company has Nil capital and other commitments as at 31st March 2022 (31st March 2021: Nil).

37 EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE (EPS)
a. Basic EPS amounts has been calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the 

Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

b. Diluted EPS amounts has been calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by 
the weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number 
of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in 
the basic and diluted EPS computations:

 FOR THE YEAR ENDED  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

31ST MARCH 2022 31ST MARCH 2021
 (Amount in Rs.)  (Amount in Rs.) 

Profit/(Loss) for the year  6,818,569  10,897,061 
Weighted average number of equity shares (Nos.)  613,722  633,180 
Nominal value of  equity shares  10  10 
Earnings per equity share

Basic  11.11  17.21 
Diluted  11.11  17.21 

Weighted average number of equity shares 
Number of shares considered as weighted average shares 
outstanding for Basic EPS

 613,722  633,180 

Add: Effect of dilutive potential equity shares  -  - 
Number of shares considered as weighted average shares 
(including dilutive shares) outstanding for Diluted EPS

 613,722  633,180 

38 DUE TO MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES AS DEFINED UNDER THE MSMED ACT, 2006
The principal amount and the interest due thereon 
remaining unpaid to any supplier

FOR THE YEAR ENDED FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31ST MARCH 2022 31ST MARCH 2021
 (Amount in Rs.’000)  (Amount in Rs.’000) 

a. Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 1525.24 623.44
b. Interest due on above  -  - 
c. Amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 

16 of the MSMED, along with the amounts of payments 
made to supplier beyond the appointed day

 -  - 

d. Amount of interest due and payable for the period of 
delay in making payment (which have been paid but 
beyond the appointed day ) but without adding the 
interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006.

 -  - 

e. Amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid  -  - 

39 OTHER NOTES
(a) Debit and credit balances of trade payables, trade receivables, loans and advances to the extent not confirmed 

are subject to confirmation and reconciliation with the parties.
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(b) As per the requirement of Schedule III of the Act, the Board of Directors have considered the values of all assets 
of the Company other then fixed assets, and have come to a conclusion that these have a value on realization in 
the ordinary course of business which is not less than the value at which they are stated in the balance sheet.

(c) Previous year’s figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to make them comparable.

“Signatures to Notes 1 to 39”
“As per our Report of even date”

FOR DAIYA TIWARI & SONI   ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS                         
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 004268C

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
BRIJ GOPAL DAIYA  SUMITA GHOSE DULICHAND SOLANKI
PARTNER Managing Director Director
Membership Number: 082385 DIN: 01016426 DIN: 07157982
Place: Bikaner Place: Bikaner Place: Bikaner
Date: 13th May, 2022 Date: 13th May, 2022 Date: 13th May, 2022
UDIN: 22082385AJESBP6962
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FORM NO. SH-13
NOMINATION FORM

[Pursuant to section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(1) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) 
Rules 2014]

To 
Rangsutra Crafts India Limited
A-39, Karni Nagar, Lalgarh,
Bikaner-334001,
Rajasthan

I/We ________________________________the holder(s) of the securities particulars of which are given hereunder 
wish to make nomination and do hereby nominate the following persons in whom shall vest, all the rights in respect of 
such securities in the event of my/our death. 

(1) PARTICULARS OF THE SECURITIES (in respect of which nomination is being made) 

Nature of Securities Folio No. No. of Securities Certificate No. Distinctive No.

(2) PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE/S-

(a) Name
(b) Date of Birth
(c) Father’s/Mother’s/Spouse’s name
(d) Occupation
(e) Nationality 
(f) Address
(g) E-mail id
(h) Relationship with the security holder

(3) IN CASE NOMINEE IS A MINOR

(a) Date of birth
(b) Date of attaining majority
(c) Name of Guardian
(d) Address of Guardian

(4) PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE IN CASE MINOR NOMINEE DIES BEFORE ATTAINING AGE OF MAJORITY

(a) Name
(b) Date of Birth
(c) Father’s/Mother’s/Spouse’s name
(d) Occupation
(e) Nationality 
(f) Address
(g) E-mail id
(h) Relationship with the security holder
(i) Relationship with the minor nominee

Name:

Address:

Name of the Security Holder (s): …………………………  Signature: …………………………………………………..

Witness with Name and Address:…………………………
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Please fill this Nomination form in Duplicate after carefully reading the instruction given below: 

1. The Nomination can be made by individual’s only holdings shares singly or jointly. Non- individuals including 
Society, Trust, Body Corporate, Partnership firm, Karta of Hindu Undivided Family and Power of Attorney holder 
cannot nominate. 

2. The nominee shall not be a Trust, Society, Body Corporate, Partnership firm, Karta of Hindu Undivided Family and 
power of attorney holder. 

3. The shareholder[s] can nominate a minor as a nominee and in that event, the name and address of the guardian 
shall be provided. 

4. As per section 72 of Companies Act 2013, if the shares are held by more than one person jointly, then the joint 
holders may together nominate a person to whom all the rights in the shares of the Company shall vest, in the 
event of death of all the joint holders. 

5. If the shares are held jointly, subsequent to the death of anyone of the holders, the shares would not be registered 
in favour of the nominee but would be transferred in the name of the surviving shareholders. 

6. Nomination stands cancelled whenever the shares in the given folio are transferred/ dematerialized. Also in case 
of change in folio due to consolidation/ transmission a new nomination has to be filed. 

7. The nomination made through Form No. SH-13 will be considered valid if the nomination made by the holder[s] of 
the shares is registered with the company before the death of the registered holder[s] of the shares. 

8. Kindly note that the nomination being a legal document should be dated by the nominator and the witness 
should certify that the nominator has signed the form in their presence. Furthermore the date of execution on the 
Nomination Form should match with the date of witness, witnessing the document. 

9. Affixing photograph of the Nominee is not mandatory and if affixed the nominee should sign across the photograph. 

 FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

Nomination Registration No. Date of Registration Signature of Shareholder
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Form No. SH-14
Cancellation or Variation of Nomination

[Pursuant to sub-section (3) of section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(9) of the Companies (Share Capital 
and Debentures) Rules 2014]

To 
Rangsutra Crafts India Limited
A-39, Karni Nagar, Lalgarh,
Bikaner-334001,
Rajasthan

I/We hereby cancel the nomination(s) made by me/us in favour of______________________________ (name and 
address of nominee) in respect of the below mentioned securities.

Or
I/We hereby nominate the following person in place of ______________________________as nominee in respect of 
the below mentioned securities in whom shall vest all rights in respect of such securities in the event of my/our death.

(1) PARTICULARS OF THE SECURITIES (in respect of which nomination is being cancelled/varied) 

Nature of securities Folio No. No. of securities Certificate No. Distinctive No.

(2)(a) PARTICULARS OF NEW NOMINEE:

i Name
ii Date of Birth
iii Father’s/Mother’s/Spouse’s name
iv Occupation
v Nationality 
vi Address
vii E-mail id
viii Relationship with the security holder

(b) IN CASE NEW NOMINEE IS A MINOR-

i Date of Birth
ii Date of attaining majority
iii Name of Guardian
iv Address of Guardian

(3) PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE IN CASE MINOR NOMINEE DIES BEFORE ATTAINING AGE OF MAJORITY

i Name
ii Date of Birth
iii Father’s/Mother’s/Spouse’s name
iv Occupation
v Nationality 
vi Address
vii E-mail id
viii Relationship with the security holder
ix Relationship with the minor nominee

Name:

Address:

Name of the Security Holder (s): …………………………                                        Signature: …………………………………………………..

Witness with name and address: ………………………..



RANGSUTRA CRAFTS INDIA LIMITED |60

FORM NO. MGT-11

PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member (s) : ________________________________________________
Registered Address : ________________________________________________
E-mail Id : ________________________________________________
Folio No/ *Client Id : ________________________________________________
DP ID* : ________________________________________________

*Applicable for members holding shares in electronic form

I/We, being the member(s) of _____________________Shares of above named Company, hereby appoint

1. Name:_______________________________________________ E-mail Id:__________________________________
Address: ________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________
Signature: _______________________________________________________________________________________
                                                                                          or failing him/her
2. Name:_______________________________________________ E-mail Id:__________________________________
Address: ________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________
Signature: _______________________________________________________________________________________
                                                                                           or failing him/her
3. Name:_______________________________________________ E-mail Id:__________________________________
Address: ________________________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________________________________
Signature: _______________________________________________________________________________________

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 16th Annual General Meeting of 
the Company to be held on Monday, the 20th Day of June, 2022 at 02:00 P.M. at Bikaner Zila Udhyog Sangh, Near Ridhi 
Sidhi Bhawan, Road No 5, Rani Bazar Industrial Area, Bikaner-334001, Rajasthan and at any adjournment thereof in 
respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution 
Number

Resolution **Vote (Optional see Note 2)
(Please mention No. of Shares)

For Against Abstain
Ordinary Business
1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial 

statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2022 and the Report of the Board of Directors (Board’s 
Report) and Auditors thereon.  

2 To appoint Ms. Lata kachhawaha as a Director in place 
of Mr. Rewata Ram Panwar (DIN: 02046175), who retires 
by rotation and being eligible, but not offers himself for 
re-appointment.

Special Business

3. Appointment of Mr. Rahul John Noble Singh as Director 
of the Company from additional director.
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Signed this.............. day of .................... 2022.             

Signature of Shareholder _______________    
                                                                                         
Signature of Proxy Holder(s) _____________
    
Notes:

(1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the 
Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting.

(2) **This is only optional. Please put a tick (P) in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. 
If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ or ‘Abstain’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be 
entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.

(3) Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he/she so wishes.

Affix
Rs. 1/-

Revenue
Stamp

ATTENDANCE SLIP

16TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING – 20TH Day of June 2022

EVEN (Remote e-voting Event 
Number)         

USER ID   PASSWORD/PIN

119879

For Demat Holding                                                                          For Physical Holding

                  

Full Name of the Member (IN BLOCK LETTERS)

________________________________________________________________________________________________

Address of the Member

________________________________________________________________________________________________

I certify that I am a member/Proxy for the member of the Company.

I hereby record my presence at the 16th Annual General Meeting of the Company on Monday, the 20th  Day of June, 
2022 at 02:00 P.M. at Bikaner Zila Udhyog Sangh, Near Ridhi Sidhi Bhawan, Road No 5, Rani Bazar Industrial Area, 
Bikaner-334001, Rajasthan 

___________________________________

Signature of the member(s)/Proxy holder(s)

Notes:   

1.  Members/Proxy holders are requested to bring the duly signed original attendance slip to the meeting and hand it 
over at the entrance.            

2.  For the convenience of members, persons other than members/proxies will not be admitted.

Folio No.DPID

Client ID No. of Shares
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CONSENT FOR RECEIVING DOCUMENTS IN ELECTRONIC MODE

(Pursuant to circular Nos. 17/2011 dated 21st April, 2011 and 18/11 dated 29th April, 2011)

To 

Rangsutra Crafts India Limited

A-39, Karni Nagar, Lalgarh,

Bikaner-334001,

Rajasthan

Dear Madam,

I/We shareholder(s) of Rangsutra Crafts India Limited (“the Company”), agree to receive all notices and documents 
including the Annual Report, Notice for General Meeting and other Shareholders Communication, being sent by the 
Company from time to time, in electronic mode (through e-mail).

I/We request you to kindly register my/our below mentioned email id in the Company’s records for sending such 
communication through e-mail.

Folio No……………………………………..

Name of the Sole/First Shareholder:……………………………………......................…………………………………………………………………….

Name of the Joint Shareholder (if any):………………………….......................………………………………………………………………………….

No. of Shares held:………………………………………………………………......................…………………………………………………………………….

E-mail id for receipt of documents in electronic mode:…………...........................…………………………………………………………

Date:  Signature:…………………………………………………………

Place: (Sole/First Shareholder)

Note: 

Shareholders are requested to inform the Company as and when there is change in their registered email ID.

…............…………………………………………………………..........…………………………………………………………………………………………………....

FORM FOR UPDATION OF MEMBERS DETAILS

*Required for payment of dividend

Folio No.________________  No. of Shares held______________

Name of the Shareholder:……………………………………………………………………………………………………............……………………………….

Address:…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..........……………..

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………............…………...

Permanent Account Number (PAN):………………………….Contact No:…………………………Email:……………………..........………………..

*Bank Account No:……………………………………….Account Type:………………………….IFSC………...........………………………………………

Name and Address of the Bank:………………………………………………………………………………………..........…………………………………….

………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..........………………………………….....
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ROUTE MAP OF THE VENUE OF 16TH AGM OF  RANGSUTRA CRAFTS INDIA LTD.

Bikaner Zila Udhyog Sangh, Near Ridhi Sidhi Bhawan, Road No 5, Rani Bazar Industrial Area, 
Bikaner-334001
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